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MEMBERS PRESENT: Mr. Stewart
Mr. Sader
Mr. Banner
Mr. Chaney
Ms. Foley
Mr. Thompson
Mr. Beyer
Mrs. Cafferata
Mrs. Ham
Mr. Malone

MEMBER ABSENT:
Mr. Price

GUESTS PRESENT: W. Bob Shriver, Nevada Trail Lawyers, Association
W. Labadie, State Welfare
G. Handley, State Welfare
Mary Lee, State Welfare
Bill Furlong, State Welfare
Tom Huddleston, State Fire Marshal
Mel Close, Senator

SB 453 - Authorizes certain investment of surplus in trust fund
for child welfare on behalf of child. (BDR 38-1328)

Bill Labadie, State Welfare Division, said under current law any
funds held in trust for any child they have in care are not in
interest bearing trust accounts. There has never been a law that
would allow this. SB 453 will give them authority to place all

the funds for children under their care in interest bearing accounts;
some are fairly large accounts. There are now 145 children with
money in accounts, the amounts vary from $25 to $10,000. Twenty
children will qualify under this bill because their accounts are

in excess of $500. There is no reason why these accounts should

not bear interest. He urges passage of SB 453.

Mrs. Ham askedthe source of the money and was informed by Mr.

Labadie that most of it came from SSI, which is a supplemental
security income for aged, blind and disabled. They have many mentally
retarded children who are in their system rather than in a mental
health facitilty. Some of the money comes from social security of

a deceased parent; some from veteran's benefits.

He added, in reference to another proposed measure this was one of
the reasons why he did not believe parental rights should be termi-
nated in every case; because some time in the future it could be
financially detrimental to the children.

Mr. Banner moved to Do Pass SB 453; Mr. Thompson seconded the motion;
motion carried unanimously. Messers Chaney, Price and Beyer were
absent for the vote.

(Committee Minutes) 'p 1ok LD
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SB 520 - Sets time limit for bringing certain actions for malpractice
and reduces time limit for certain other actions. (BDR 2-1313)

Bob Shriver, Nevada Trial Lawyer's Association, said the bill

sets time limit for bringing certain actions of malpractice against
accountants, attorneys and veterinariansto the absolute four year
statutes similar to what the providers of health care have now.
The provision on page 3 of the bill biginning with line 16 was not
intended to be amended to four years. The reason they do not
want to have the same statute of limitations for building contrac-
tors. They feel that the four year statute should not be applied
to everyone. Construction problems may not surface for some time
after the completion of a project and four years is too short

a time. They recommend leaving NRS 11.205 exactly as it was.

Mrs. Cafferata asked if the same testimony was given to the Senate
Committee. Mr. Shriver answered in the affirmative and said the
only one concerned had been Chairman Close. At the time he thought
the four year limitation should include building contractors. Mr.
Shriver said before he could obtain information to substantiate his
position there had been a floor vote on the measure. If the
Assembly Committee has a problem they have no objections to moving
attorneys to six years to coincide with building contractors. Pre-
sently there is not a limitation. It is somewhat unfair to have
vetinarians with an unlimited malpractice liability. The idea was
to afford some protection in the form of a statute of limitations
to bring accountants, attorneys and veterinarians in line with
medical profession. Sections 1 and 2 coincides with the statute

of limitations for those in health care.

Mr. Sader remarked on a phrase in the measure, a time limitation

of four years after the client sustains or discovers the damage,
that is a major provision because normally time limitations begin
at the time the act occurs. In some cases the time limitation

runs from the time one should reasonably discover the damage. That
is a big difference, for instance with attorneys and accountants
and in some cases, doctors. One doesn't reasonably know one has
been wronged until a long time after the event occurs.

Mr. Shriver agreed the physicians' statute was more strict.

Mr. Sader said this proposed limitation was less strict in that
it creates a longer period of time to institute an action.

Mrs. Ham asked to have explained again the reason for the limitation.

Mr. Sader said there was a theory of long standing that one should
be required to bring ones case within a definite period of time.

It is not fair to be indefinitely liable. The question has always
been how long a period of time should it be within which a suit

can be filed. 1In Californa it is one year; in Nevada it is within
two years with certain exceptions, and this is one of the exceptions.
The normal is a two year period of limitations. That is two years
from the time the accident occurs. 2:73
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Mr. Sader proposed amendment to the construction phrase that
changes it from six years to four years. He moved for an amend-
ment to change it back to six years.

Mr. Thompson seconded the amendment; and added that it was true in
construction, particularly design and quality control, that a long
period of time was required for problems to surface and it could

be a tremendous financial impact to the owner of a building. There
could be millions of dollars of damage that did not come to light
in the four year period, and they should have cause of action for

a law suit.

Mr. Sader moved to amend SB 520 and Mr. Thompson seconded the
motion; the motion to amend carried unanimously. Messers Chaney,
Price and Beyer were absent for the vote.

Ms. Foley made a motion to amend and Do Pass SB 520; Mr. Sader
seconded the motion; motion carried unanimously. Messers Price,
Chaney, and Beyer were absent for the vote.

SB 199 - Revises laws relating to consents for adoption and sub-
sidized adoptions. (BDR kkOk75(

Mary Lee, Nevada State Welfare Division, said section 1 of SB 199
is included because of a change being made in another section of
the bill. Section 2, page 2, line 1 and 2 would allow for the pay-
ment of attorneys fees and court costs in adoption procedures when
the adoptive family is eligible for an adoption subsidy. 1In the
past they have usually found attorneys willing to waive the fee for
low income familes that were adopting a child with a special

need. For example a child over the age of 9, a child with a serious
behavior problem or mentally retarded, or a sibling group. In
recent times this has become difficult. They expect there will

be only one or two cases a year.

Mrs. Cafferata asked the source of the money and was informed it
came out of the funding for subsidized adoptions - a ‘state source.

Mr. Banner asked the procedure and the need for an attorney. Ms.
Lee answered that the need was to handle the actual finalization

of the aloption; the filing of the petition to adopt and to be in
court at the time.

Mr. Sader asked why a state attorney would not be available for
this purpose.

Ms. Lee said they could not serve in that capacity.

Mr. Sader asked if the situation under consideration involved a

special child in the ward of the state in which there were adoptive
parents.

274
(Committee Minates)
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Ms. Lee said that it was the situation in which the child was in
their custody and they were recommending placement.

Mr. Bill Labadie of the Welfare Division said that in most cases

it would be a foster parent who had the care of the child for some-
time and had decided to adopt but did not have the money for the
legal requirements. That is why they receive a subsidy from the
Welfare Department. This subisdy is mostly for medical care. 1In
addition to subsidy for medical care this measure would allow pay-
ment to an attorney to finalize theadoption.

Ms. Lee continuing said section 3 was adding the term "hospital" to
the definition of those persons or corporations, etc., that must
comply with chapter 127 regarding notification prior to placement
involving an independent adoption. They have been complying with
the section in Chapter 422.

Mr. Stewart asked how the hospital became involved in the adoption
procedure, and Ms. Lee responded that employees of the hospital
have been arranging and helping in the placement of children and
and independent adoptions. That is the problem.

Mr. Stewart asked if they were children born in the hospital or
children being treated. Ms. Lee answered it was new born children
relinguished by the mother. Instead of referring them to an adoption
agency, they help with the placement, which is in violation of the
law. The hospitals had indicated they were not required to comply
with Chapter 127. They feel the Chapter does not apply to them.
The Welfare Department is attempting to clarify the statute to pre-
clude such interpretations. They will not be authorized to arrange
placement for independent adoptions. They will have to notify the
Welfare Division prior to placement. If the Division approves then
the hospital can release the child as authorized; otherwise they
could only release the child to the the Welfare Division while the
prospective adoptive family is studied to ascertain suitability for
adoption of a child. By statute this process cannot take more than
60 days. During this time the child has to remain with the mother
or be placed in a foster home pending completion of the investiga-
tion. The study is usually completed within 30 days.

Mrs. Ham commented that if the mother kept the baby for 30 days she
would change her mind and keep the baby and asked if there was a
provision that prevented this.

Ms. Lee said she did not know of any instances where the mother had
actually opted to keep the baby for the length of time of the study.
The child goes into a foster home. Every effort is made to complete
as soon as possible the study. She added if they were notified prior
to the birth of the child, the study would be made immediately and
the was placed right out of the hospital. There are situations where
the Welfare division is not notified until after the child is placed
in the adoptive home.

Mrs. Ham said the mother could not relinguish the child befogzuggith.
- ) ' mittee Mioutes)
A Form 70 8769 G




Minutes of the Nevada State Legislature
Assembly Committee on........Judiciary
Date.....May..19, 1981

Page:

Mrs. Ham then asked how information was obtained for the study.

Ms. Lee agreed the child could not be relinguished before birth but
if the mother indicated she planed to give the baby to a particular
family, the Welfare Division would begin the study prior to birth
even though there is the possibility that the mother will change
her mind.

Mr. Thompson asked if that did happen, and the hospital placed
the child, would not the Division do a study on the adoptive parents
when they learned of the incident.

Ms. Lee said a study was made but the hospital was violating the law.
Their concern is protection of the child. They are concerned about
children being placed with persons that have not been investigated
as to their suitability as parents. That is why they try, when
possible to have the family studied before the chold is placed.

Mr. Thompson asked if there had ever been an incident in which
the . child was placed by a hospital and the Division later found
the adoptive parents unsuitable. Ms. Lee replied that had happened.
The courts, for the most part, will not remove the child if the
child has been in the home for any length of time unless it can be
proved that there is severe abuse in the home or like situation.

Mrs. Cafferata questiond the grounds for unsuitability and was in-
formed that an adoptive father with a criminal record was an example,
Occurrences are not frequent but a child can get in an unfit home.

In response to a question from Mrs. Cafferata, Ms. Lee researched
her records and said that 53 families received children through
independent adoptions in 1980. One of these families was found un-
suitable. There more than 53 children involved. Some of the fami-
lies adopted sibling groups. The majority are new born.

Mrs. Ham asked if a relative of child adopted the child, would they
have to go through the same process and was informed that if it were
a relative situation the court could waive the investigation.

Mr. Stewart asked the catagories of adoption other than independent
adoptions, and Ms. Lee replied the other was agency adoption. If
the child was under the custody of the Welfare they placed the child.

Mr. Sader asked if a hospital employee recommended an adoptive fami-
ly would the Vlelfare Division investigate the family and Ms. Lee
said they would.

Ms. Lee referring to Section 4 of SB 199, said currently the

statute did not allow for nullifying a consent to a specific in-
dependent adoption. If the court finds the family is unusitable and
does not remove the child, there is nothing in the statute to nulli-
fy that consent to adoption that the birth parents have signed to
that specific family. This would add that provision into law where
the court could nullify that consent if they did find the édq tive

(Committee Minutes) Oa ‘
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family unsuitable. Then the child could revert to the parent or the
court could place the child with the Division to find another adop-
tive home, or could place the child with any licensed adoption agency.

Ms. Lee referring to the final section 5, added there was a cross
reference in section 449 to Chapter 127 to make it very clear that
hospitals must also comply with the chapter. Section 449 deals with
the fact hospitals are susposed to notify the Welfare Division when-
ever any child is being removed by anyone other than parents or
relatives.

Mrs. Cafferata said she was not going to vote for this bill

Mr. Sader moved to Do Pass SB 199; Mr. Malone seconded the motion;
Messers Stewart, Sader, Banner,Thompson, Malone and Ms. Foley and
Mrs. Ham voted "aye":; Ms. Cafferata voted "no". Messers Chaney,
Price, and Beyer were absent for the vote. Motion Carried.

SB 253 - Allows district attorney to assess fees against applicant
for child support or establishment of paternity who is not
indigent.

Bill Furlong, with the family judiciary said the purpose of SB 253
was to increase the resources, not to state government but to local
units of government, particularly the district attorneys office, in
addressing the non-support cases that are before them. Even though
the programs made great strides toward increasing the effectiveness
of collections throughout the State of Nevada, they find that the
local units of government particularly the professional staffs of
the attorneys are still understaffed. There is a full time equiva-
lent of approximately four attorneys to work over 20,000 cases both
in and out of state. This is a poor time to attempt to gain addi-
tional resources from county commissioners. This bill places the
responsibilty for funding of those programs unto persons that create
the problems - the absent parent that will not hold himself respon-
sible for providing support for his children.

Mr. Furlong, continuing, said section 1 of the bill modifies Chapter
126, the paternity statutes, and subsection 1 of section 1, is only
for clarification. They make no substantive changes in the chapter.
In subsection 2, they provide the district attorneys with the author-
ity to charge a $20 application fee whenever a case is brought before
them except cases brought by the State of Nevada. Subsection 3 pro-
vides authority for the court to order a collection fee up to 25%

of the support obligation given against any responsible parent.

Mr. Stewart asked if this fee came out of the suppbrt money itself.
Mr. Furlong said it did not. This was an add-on.

Ms. Foley asked why the 25%. Mr. Furlong said the 25% figure was

to give the court latitude in those cases where there might be gross

abuse of the system, such as an absent parent with adequate resources

to address the needs of the family and yet consitently failed to

meet his support obligation. This will allow the court a method of

making that absent parent pay for the repetitious appearances hefore
(Committee Minutes) (: o
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that court.

Mrs. Cafferata asked if 25% were reasonable, if this was a penalty
or the costs. Mr. Furlong answered that this was "not more than 25%;
the court has discretion. They could set that amount at nothing be-
cause some absent parents might have the ability to pay nothing and
others may pay less than 25%. The court could assess as much as 25%.

Mr. Stewart said he doubted the fees collected would pay the costs
of procedings, the attorneys fees, the courts.

Mrs. Cafferata asked what happend to the money. Mr. Furlong responded
subsection 4 provides that all money collected must be depositied

in the general fund of the county and an equivalent amount must be
allocated to augment the county's program for the enforcement of sup-
port obligations; so any monies assessed against that responsible
parent would then be utilized to improve the Title 44 program in

that county.

Mr. Sader observed that the 25% figure pertained to the support
obligation and asked when one suing for support, and two types of
support were involved- the arrears already accumulated and the con-
tinuing regular monthly obligation - to which obligation does the
25% apply.

Mr. Furlong said the 25% applied to the ongoing support obligation.
MR. Sader continued trying to clarify the fee. He was told the 25%
or whatever amount was assessed as a fine would increase each months
support payment by the amount of the fine, until the court decided
to remove the increased amount.

Mr. Sader said he understood the intent and thought it reasonable
but was concerned that the language in the bill may not be clear.

Mr. Furlong said that the intent is to give the courts the authority
to make the determination of the fines and their duration. He felt
the courts would insure that the fines were equitable.

Mrs. Cafferata, referring to subsection 4, asked the source of the
money. She was informed by Mr. Furlong that that money came out of
the general fund. The monies would be deposited into the general
fund as Title 44 collections and this particular statute requires
that the board of county commissioners then reallocate that same
amount of money back to the Title 4d program within their district
attorney office. For clarification Ms. Cafferata noted it was the
same money and not additional "matching" funds.

Mr. Sader proposed an amendment, adding he was not sure of the lan-
guage as yet but on lines 16 through 19, and it would apply to the
other section also, to the effect that "in addition to any support
obligation order, the collection fee to cover the cost of enforcement
would be assessed and if the court determines that the non-supporting
parent cannot pay that fee immediately, that the collection fee be
assessed in an amount up to 25% of the ongoing support obligation
until the cost of enforcement is satisfied. 2678
(Comumittee Minutes)
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Mrs. Cafferata asked if this amendment made the 25% fee mandatory.
Mr. Sader replied "no". That for example, the court determines it
will cost $1000 to bring this particular person to justice, if the
non-supporting parent is capable of paying the $1000 immediately
there is no reason to require the state to collect it in the future.
This increases the costs. If it is not feasible to pay the entire
amount immediately because offending parent does not have the money,
then the assessment could be up to 25% of the amount the parent is
obligated to pay in monthly support until the enforcement costs are
paid in full. It will be a one time fee paid immediately or made
in monthly payments not to exceed 25% of the monthly support
payments.

Mrs. Cafferata seconded the motion to amend SB 253 made by Mr.
Sader; motion carried unanimously. Messers Beyer, Price, Chaney and
Banner were absent for the vote.

Mrs. Cafferata moved to Do Pass as amended SB 253; Mr. Malone second-
ed the motion; motion carried unanimously. Messers Beyer, Price,
Chaney and Banner were absent for the vote.

AB 246 - Adds to provisions for assignment of wages of responsible
parent for child support. (BDR 38-813)

Mr. Sader said he had had this measure on his desk for sometime. It
deals with child support and assignment of wages. Several people
have testified on the bill and the fact that it was needed to provide
reinformement of child support through the assignment of wages. There
was a companion bill from the Senate which had better language and
the bill sponsor, Assemblyman Dubois, agreed to incorporate parts

of SB 252 into AB 246. The bill still indicates that Mr. DuBois is
the sponsor. The Senate has concurred in this action. There are
provisions that involve "notice" to the employer and the delinquent
parent which Welfare thought very important. These were included

in the bill. At this point they have the Senate Bill with extra
notice provisions which insure both the employer and parent will have
adequate notice and the procedure is set up if they wish to dispute
this. This is Amendment Number 843.

Mr. Sader moved to adopt amendment number 843 and Do Pass as amended
AB 246; Mrs. Cafferata seconded the motion; motion carried unanimous-
Ty. Messers Price, Chaney and Banner were absent for the vote.

SB 526 - Authorizes state fire marshal to issue subpoenas and ad-
minister oaths whenever required to conduct investigation.

Tom Huddleston, State Fire Marshal, said the bill was instigated on
the advise of the chief deputy attorney general assigned to their
division. When they make arson investigations it is sometimes very
difficult to secure records needed. He cited examples that involved
wrongful death suits. Often the companies are willing to supply the
information only under subpoena. This is for their legal protection.
The Senate did not indicate any problems but specified proper noti-
fication, and Mr. Huddleston has no objections to that restriction.
They would like the ability to issue subpoenas when necessary.zsrwj
g

Q
L ® o)
(Commlttee Minutes)

A Form 70 8769 &3>




Minutes of the Nevada State Legisl.atm:e
Assembly Committee on.... . JUdiciary
Date:.May 19, 1981

Page:...2 .

'(:> Mr. Malone asked the objection to going through the district attor-
ney's office.

Mr. Huddleston said their biggest problem was that most district
attorneys were not conversant with arson laws or the various aspects
of arson investigation. At present they do without much vital in-
formation and as a consequence they are close to the statutory limi-
tations for filing charges of unlawful acts.

Ms. Foley said she had to be consistant. They had decided not to
give this power to the attorney general or the district attorneys
and she could not agree to giving the subpoena power to the state
fire marshal. They are not accountable to the people for their
actions.

Mr. Huddleston said he felt sure there were checks and balances.
If the statute were abused he would be reprimanded. He does not
object to any type of qualifier or rider the committee makes a part
of the bill. 1If the issurance of the subpoena were through the
attorney general's office or the local district attorney there were
still no objections from his office. There is a valid need for the
availability of information necessary to the successful completion
of their investigations. He said he did not understand the reason-
ing behind the denial of subpoena powers to the attorney general or
<:> district attorney.

Ms. Foley answered that they could subpoena documents and records

in any civil or criminal investigation which they determined might
be relative to an investigation. They only had to show the district
judge that the person had knowledge of the information and nothing
more.

Mr. Huddleston said that to some extent there were parameters in
this bill to the effect that this power can only be used in the
instance where they are required by law to investigate in counties
of less than 100,000 population and only when there is a suspicious
fire or fire death involved. Senator Kosinski had asked that they
notify the district attorney in the area where they planned to issue
a subpoena. They would not take any actions without first consult-
ing with their legal counsel.

Mrs. Ham asked the frequency and the reasons for the use of sub-
poena power. Mr. Huddleston answered the subpoena power was need-
ed for about 30% of their cases. The reasons ranged from the need
to inspect the insurance policy to an analysis of the books to de-
termine if the company was operating at a profit prior to the fire.
There were a number of valid reasons to secure records. Mr. Huddle-
‘'ston and Mrs. Ham discussed the legal powers of the insurance com-
panies to conduct investigations. The insurance may or may not
choose to share the information with the fire marshal's office.

‘§:> Mr. Stewart explained that the committee was reluctant to increase
subpoena powers.

. > R

Mr. Huddleston said he did not draft the bill. He only asked tndtCLJ
(Committee Minutes)
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they be given consideration for subpoena power. He has no problems
with whatever qualifiers the committee added to the bill. He only
asked that they be given consideration for subpoena power. In re-
sponse to a question from Ms. Foley he said they were peace officers.
They arrest felons for crimes such as arson, bombings, etc. Mr.
Stewart added that all arson investigators did have peace officer
status.

Ms. Foley questioned if his investigators would be the only ones in

a position to issue subpoenas for arson type crimes and Mr. Huddleston
confirmed this, adding the power to subpoena would enhance the in-
vestigation processes.

SB 580 - Requires marriage license to bear the seal of the county.

Senator Close said the only change in SB 580 was on page 2, line 8
and 9. There is no seal for the district court; the seal is for
the county.

Ms. Foley moved to Do Pass SB 580; Mr. Malone seconded the motion.

Mrs. Ham asked for an explanation of the bill. Senator Close said
the obligation to put the seal of the district court judge on marri-
age certificates was being removed. There is no seal of the district
court judge. The county clerk affixes her seal on the marriage
license.

Ms. Foley pointed out that according to statute the district court
judge did have a seal. Discussion followed. Senator Close said the
seal was not used because the marriage license was issued by the
clerk, not the court.

Ms. Foley had moved to Do Pass SB 580 and Mr. Malone had seconded
the motion. There was no further discussion. The committee voted
unanimously in favor of the motion; motion carried. Messers Sader,
Banner, Price, Beyer and Mrs. Cafferata were absent for the vote.

SB 579 - Removes dupllcatlve statutory language and supplies omitted
provision concerning marriage.

Senator Close said that language on lines 9 through 11 is a dupli-
cation of language otherwise contained in the statutes. On page 2,
lines 2 and 3, is the bill drafters change; lines 5 through 8 clari-
fies the statute. The present statute says that "if any of the per-
sons intending to marry is under age and has not been previously
married, the clerk shall issue a license! That is not the case. 1If
one is underage one may be required to have a district court's con-
sent. The language that is added provides that "if any person who
is underage intends to marryand the authorization of a district court
is not required the clerk shall issue the license." Line 16 clari-
fies the clerk's authority to issue a license to a minor only if the
county clerk has the authorization in writing from the district court.
The real problem appears in paragraph 4, page 2, lines 5 through 8,
which provides that people who are underage can be married without
getting an authorization and this clarifies that.

(Committee Minutes) ;dUBJL
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Mr. Chaney asked if this meant the district court must authorize
marriage for those underage even if they have parental consent.

Senator Close said he thought if one were under 15 or 16 years of
age they had to have court authority.

Mr. Chaney asked what was "underage."

Senator Close replied "18". 1If between ages of 16 and 18 years of age
one can be married with the parents consent. 3Below 16, one must have
parents consent and approval of the district court. A problem with
the bill was that it indicated if one were underage and the parents
gave consent the marriage could take place. That is not the case.
They must also have the district court consent if they are under the
age of 16.

Mr. Malone moved toDo Pass SB 579; Ms. Cafferata seconded the motion;
motion carried unanimoeusly. Messers Banner, Price and Sader were
absent for the vote.

Ms. Foley moved to indefinitely postpone SB 526.

Mr. Malone requested discussion. He said this was a different situ-
~ation. Even if it were amended it is different than giving the
attorney general or the district attorney an open subpoena to use

as they choose. This is only to do with arson. By not giving them
subpoena power it is restricting their investigation. He wonders

if they should restrict them completely. He is up to the statute

of limitations on investigations that involved deaths. If this is

postponed it is possible he will not be able to complete the investi-
gation.

Mr. Chaney said he thought that in cases where investigations were
needed, there was no problem.

Ms. Foley said with the insurance bill, they had access to that in-
formation, (referring to a bill that has been passed). Also consi-
der "who is the state fire marshal”. Here is this person no one
knows, and he is asking for subpoena powers that the attorney gener-
al and the district attorneys who are accountable to the people do
not have. If the legislators opposed giving these powers to them,
they should be consistent. They can go to the district court judge
and convince him that it was justified. It was not an urgent situ-
ation. No one is in danger.

Mr. Thompson said he agreed with Ms. Foley. The state fire marshal

did not have to answer to anyone. It was not necessary that he have
that power. He can get subpoena's now through the normal procedures
just like everyone else.

Mr. STewart called for the guestion.

Ms. Foley had moved to indefinitely postpone SB 526. Mr. Thompson
seconded the motion; motion carried unarimously. Mr. Banner and

- i 4 ote. f
Mr. Price were absent for (E.,h..‘.?.m;’ t ) Z«,uz
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SB 414 - Limits requirements for termination of employment of
persons denied gaming license (BDR 41-986)

Mr. Stewart explained that this was a measure brought about by

the Rosenthal case. There was some question about the language
appearing on lines 20 and 21. It says if you revoke his suita-
bility , he could not be employed in any place, terminates employ-
ment in the particular capacity in which he is determined by the
commission to exercise his influence. Mr. Stewart said Mr. Daykin
had said the better language would be "in the capacity for which he
may be required to be licensed".

Mr. Malone made the motion to amend SB414 per Mr. Daykins recom-
mendation; Mr. Sader seconded the motion; motion carried unanimously.
Messers Banner and Price were absent for the vote.

Mr. Malone made a motion to Do Pass $B 414 as amended; Mr. Chaney
seconded the motion; motion carried unanimously. Mr. Banner and
Mr. Price were absent for the vote.

SB 645 - Provides procedure for local investigation of applicants
for gaming licenses. (BDR 412072)

There was committee discussion to the effect that there were too
many problems with this bill. Ms. Foley said at the end of previous
discussion they had decided that there was no reason for the bill.
She added she did not understand why they could not review the appli-
cation and return it within a certain period. Mr. Stewart agreed
with Ms. Foley. The committee was concerned about the confidential-
ity of information contained on the application.

Senator Mel Close testified the application form has to be given

to the county. They have provided there is to be one basic form.
That one basic form goes to the county or city, and also to the
State. The State and the county get the same form. The county, if
they so choose can have an addendum requesting additional informa-
tion they think they need to license an applicant.

Mr. Stewart commented that once the application was received by the
county or city that that entity must keep it confidential. Senator
Close said he presumed they have ordinances now requiring it be con-
fidential. He did not see that as being a problem.

Ms Foley explained she feared law enforcement agencies would not
share information with the county if it were in written form. Now
the information is shared on an informal basis, not in written form.

Senator Close said that during the subcommittee hearings this was
discussed at length. There was a time when there was no sharing of
information. They were told that they do share the information now.
There is no reason not to. There are two choices; either they allow
access to that information to which they are entitled, which they
have not had in the past; or allow the county to develope its own
licensing and investigative staff. The subcommittee felt the bet-
ter way was to let the State conduct the investigation. After the |
(Committee Mlinutes) 2 J
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completion the only way the county can make a determination unless
they want more investative powers is to have access to this infor-
mation. Senator Close said he thought it was good political science
to have one investigative authority in the State rather than have
every county have their own investigative police force. It is
costly, will not always be done well, the investigative arm of local
entities will have to be expanded considerably. They were told in
subcommittee, state agencies were willing to share completely their
information.

Ms. Foley said the state investigative agencies had indicated they
wouldn't mind the wording "the State 'may' make the investigation
but not 'shall'." The county was concerned about the FBI withhold-
ing information.

Senator Close said "may" means they can withhold pertinent informa-
tion which the county may require to make their decision. That
question had not been raised before the Senate. The decision that
was rmade in the subcommittee was that it was better political science
to have one agency conduct an investigation. The FBI with their
extensive manpower can go worldwide, and then share that information
with the county. Let the county decide if they are willing to accept
it. If they are not, do not make the applicant undergo further in-
vestigation by the county, except in the particular cases where they
feel that the state has not done a good job. Now they can conduct
full investigations, duplicating efforts of the state and national
agencies.

Mr. Chaney said he felt the problen was the sharing of information
but the 30 day period the county had in which a decision to be made
as to whether or not an investigation would be made was too long.
The county could wait until the very end of that period and then be-
gin the investigation; thus delaying the project unreasonably.

Senator Close explained that at present the state conducts the in-
vestigation; they approve the applicant; the applicant then applies
to the county; the county repeats the process. The project can be
held up for nuch longer than 30 days, as much as 6 or 7 months.

Mr. Malone made a motion to Indefinitely Postpone SB 645; Ms. Foley
seconded the motion; motion carrieé unanimously. Messers Beyer, Price
Sader, Chaney and Mrs. Cafferata were absent for the vote.

SB 39 - Reduces duplication of state and local investigation for
gaming licenses (BDR 41-452)

Mr. Thompson said SB 39 was acceptable if section 3 were omitted.

Mr. Malone said he had a question on control, jurisdiction and
suitability on the form.

Ms. Foley remarded some of the courties had done this and put it in
an ordinance. This measure insurec¢ the form would be used by all.

2(84
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B o _ 61st NEVADA LEGISLATURE

. ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ’
LEGISLATION ACTION >

O DATE: May 19, 1981
SUBJECT: SB 453

»,

Authorizes certain investment of sur in trust fund for child
netpgrdzes et It SnR T 35 15385

MOTION:

DO PASS XX AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE

RECONSIDER

MOVED BY: Mr. Banner SECONDED BY: Mr. Thompson
AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

T NOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X — _ —
Foley X _ - - - -
Beyer - — - - - I
Price - - - - - .
Sader X- __ — —_— :
Stewart X . . = — N
Chaney - — - _ _— -
Malone X - - -
Cafferata X — - -
Hanm X - - - -
Banner X ___ o _ =
TALLY: 8 0 — —_—
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed X Defeated Withdrawa
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED

AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED

IS}

ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF May 19, 1981

Assembly Judiciary
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61st NEVADA LEGISLATURE
ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION

DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: SB 520 - Sets time limit for bringing certain actions for
Malpractice and reduces time limit for certain
other actions. (BDR 2-1313)

MOTION:
DO PASS X AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE
RECONSIDER
MOVED BY: Ms. Foley SECONDED BY: Mr. Sader

AMENDMENT: Page 3 line 16 change phrase applying to construction
from four years to six years

MOVED BY: Mr. Sader SECONDED BY: Mr. Thompson
AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

N MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X - _ —
Foley 2 _ - — . _
Beyer - — - — - —
Price - — - _ - . .
Sader X - — - _ - — :
Stewart _X — - B - A
Chaney - — - — - -
Maloune X _ _ —
Caiferata X — - _
Hanm X — - — - -
Banner X -— — —
TALLY:" 8 _0 _ -
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED XX AMENDED & DEFEATED
AMENDED & PASSED i AMENDED & DEFEATED

ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF May 19, 1981
Assembly Judiciary i z(. 8o
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S " . 6lst NEVADA LEGISLATURE
) ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION .

O DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: SB 199- Revises laws relating to consents for adoption and
subsidized adoptions. (BDR 11-186)

MOTION:

DO PASS &_ AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE

RECONSIDER

MOVED BY: Mr. Sader SECONDED BY: Mr. Malone
AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

* * MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X — — -
Foley X - -
Beyer - — - - - _
Price - —_— —_— — —
Sader X — - . — ‘
Stewart X — 2 L
Chaney - - - _ - _
Malone X — — _
Caiferata X — —
Ham X - - - - -
Banner X — —_ -
TALLY: 7 1 - _
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed XX Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED
AMENDED & PASSED M AMENDED & DEFEATED
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s i . 6lst NEVADA LEGISLATURE
. ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE )
LEGISLATION ACTION >.

Q DA;'IE: May 19, 1981
imi i i i loyment
. SB 414 - Limits requirements for tegmlnatlon of emp
SUBJECT: of persons denied gaming license. (BDR 41-986

MOTION:
DO PASS AMEND _ xx INDZFINITELY POSTPONE
RECONSIDER

MOVED BY: Mr, Malone ~ SECONDED BY: _Mr, Sader '

AMENDMENT: Lines 20 and 21, change to: in the capacity for which

he may be required to be
licensed.

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

ANERINEREKX
MOTION: Do Pass as amended. Moved by Mr Malone, seconded by
Mr. Chaney. .

. MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

l v > 7 MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X — _ _
Féley X . .
Beyer X _— — -— —_— e
Price ABSEN — N — e —
Sader X __ - —_— ‘
Stewart X . & o
Chaney X — N —_— S —
Maloune X — — —
Cafferata_X - - _
Bam X - - - —
Banner ABSENT _ - -
TALLY: 9 0 — -
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed _xx Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED XX . AMENDED & DEFEATED

AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED

ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF Mav 19, 1981
ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY
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6lst NEVADA LEGISLATURE
ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION

DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: SB 253 - Allows district attorney to assess fees against
applicant for child support or establishment of
paternity who is not indigent.

MOTION:
DO PASS AMEND XX INDZFINITELY POSTPONE
RECONSIDER ___ —
MOVED BY: Mr. Sader SECONDED BY: Cafferata

AMENDMENT: lines 16 through 19 and also to apply to other section;
to the effect that in addition to any support obligation order, the
collection fee to cover the cost of enforcement would be assessed
and if the court determined that the non-supporting parent cannot pay
that fee immediately, that the collection fee be assessed in an amount
up to 25% of the ongoing support obligation until the cost of enforce-
ment is satisfied.

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

ARHHIRINGS

MOTION TO DO PASS as amended. Moved by Mrs. Cafferata seconded by
Mr. Malone ;

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

) MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO NO

Thompson
Foley X
Beyer absent
Price absgen
Sader X
Stewart _X
Chaney absent
Malone X _
Cafferata_X

Ham

Banner

TALLY:

o]
o
7
13
g
™
(73
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ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed Defeated Withdrawn

AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED
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' . 61lst NEVADA LEGISLATURE
: ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ’
LEGISLATION ACTION >

iCz) DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: AB 246 - Adds to provisions for assignment of wages of
responsible parent for child support. (BDR 38-813)

>

MOTION:
DO PASS AMEND X INDEFINITELY POSTPONE
RECONSIDER
MOVED BY: Mr. Sader SECONDED BY: Mrs. Cafferata -
AMENDMENT:

Amend number 843

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

ARBNBHEREY moved by Mr. Sader; seconded by Mrs. Cafferata
MOTION: To adopt amendment number 843 and Do Pass as amended.

_‘_ MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

: * ° MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X — - .
Foley X _ . . _
Beyer X . -
Price absent — -
Sader X - _ - . _ ‘
Stewart _X _ _ i
Chaney absent _ —
Malone X — _ _
Cafferata X — — _
Hanm . _ - - - _
Banner ABsent - —_
TALLY: 8 0 - -— —_— —_
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed A Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED XX AMENDED & DEFEATED

AMENDED & PASSED ' AMENDED & DEFEATED

: ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF _ May 19, 1981
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v " 6lst NEVADA LEGISLATURE
. ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION

O DATE: May 19, 1981
SUBJECT: SB 580 - Requires marriage license to bear the seal of the

county.

MOTION:

DO PASS XX AMEND INDEFINITEZLY POSTPONE

RECONSIDER

MOVED BY: Ms. Foley SECONDED BY: Mr. Malone
AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
AMENDMENT :

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

* MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X - _— _
Foley . — - — - —
Beyer absent _ _
Price absent o = . R
Sader absent __ _ . — :
Stewart — 2 :
Chaney - - _ - -
Malone X - -
Cafferata_absent _ _
Ham X _ —_— - —_ -
Banner absent _ _
TALLY:: 6 0 — —
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed XX Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED
AMEINDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED

R ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF May 19, 1981
Assembly Judiciar
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. i 5 61lst NEVADA LEGISLATURE
.« ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION >

Q DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: sB 579 - Removes duplicative statutory language and supplies
omitted provision concerning marriage.

MOTION:

DO PASS v AMEND INDEFINITEZLY POSTPONE

RECONSIDER

MOVED BY: Mr.. Malone SECONDED BY: .MI.S.-J.E.f.fﬁEQLL
AMENDMENT :

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

* MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X — - -
Foley . — - - - —
Beyer X _ - _ - -
Price absent ___ —_— —_— —_
Sader absent __ —_ _— — ’
Stewart X — - .
Chaney X _ - _ S —
Malone X - — —
Cafferata_X - —_ —_— —_
Ham X — —_— —_— S — —_
Banner absent ___ - —_ —_— —_
TALLY: 8 0 — —_— —_
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed XX Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED
AMENDED & PASSED. - AMENDED & DEFEATED

O‘

ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF May 19, 1981
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. s B 6lst NEVAI_)A LEGISLATURE
.- AS.SEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION

O DATE: May 19, 1981 .
SUBJECT: SB 526 - Authorizes state fire marshal to issue subpenas and
administer oaths.
MOTION:
DO PASS AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE XX
RECONSIDER
MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
AMENDMENT:
MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
- ® MOTION AMEND AMEND

VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _ X — — —

. Foley . SR —_ — —_
Beyer X — - - - -
Price ahsent __ i S Ea— i .
Sader X — ) — —_— — .
Stewvart X — - .
Chaney X _ —_— — —_— —
Malone X — — —_ —_— —_—
Cafferata_X _ - -
Bam X - S —_— ——— —_
Banner ahsent ___ — —_— — e
TALLY:- 9 0 S —_— —_— —_
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed XX Defeated Withdrawvn
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED

AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED

_O‘

ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF _May 19, 1981
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615t NEVADA LEGISLATURE
ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION .

DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: SB-645 - Provides procedure for investigation of applicants
for gaming licenses. (BDR 4102072)

MOTION:

DO PASS AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE xx

RECONSIDER

MOVED BY: Mr. Malone SECONDED BY: Ms. Foley
AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:

7 MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X _ - _
Foley X — - _ - —
Beyer ABSENT _ — —
Price ABSENT _ — _ .
Sader ABSENT _ — _
Stewart X _ o .
Chaney ABSENT _ — —_— —_
\dalone — _ _

fferataz a Ssent__ — —_— —_—
Eam — —_— —_— — —
Banner X _ _— —_— —_—
TALLY: 0o - —
ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed XX Defeated Withdrawvn
AMENDED & PASSED ] AMENDED & DEFEATED

AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DEFEATED

ATTACHED TO MINUTES oF _ oy 19, 1981
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* ) 615: NEVADA LEGISLATURE

o AS_SEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION

O DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: SB 39 - Reduces duplication of state and local investigation
for gaming licenses (BDR 41-452

MOTION:
DO PASS XX AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE
RECONSIDER
MOVED BY: Mr. Malone SECONDED BY: Ms. Foley
AMENDMENT:
MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
AMENDMENT:
MOVED BY: SECONDED BY:
) MOTION AMEND AMEND
VOTE: YES NO YES NO YES NO
Thompson _X _ _ —
. Foley A —_ —_— -
Beyer absent —_— -—
Price absent . - .
Sader absent L : - ’
Stewart X — - A
Chaney absent _ — -
Malomne X _ —_— —_— —_—
Cafferata_absent . -
Bam X — . —_— —_— _—
Banner X _ —_— —_— —_— —_—
TALLY:- 6 0 —_— —— —_— —
" ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed xx = Defeated Withdrawn
AMENDED & PASSED AMENDED & DETEATED
AMENDED & PASSED - AMENDED & DEFEATED
o ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF May 19, 1981
ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY PR e ) =
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61st NEVADA LEGISLATURE

ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
LEGISLATION ACTION

DATE: May 19, 1981

SUBJECT: SB 577 - Removes obsolete reference relating to gaming
licensing and control.

(BDR 411464)

>

MOTION:
DO PASS _X AMEND INDEFINITELY POSTPONE
RECONSIDER

MOVED BY: Mr. Malone

SECONDED BY:

AMENDMENT :

MOVED BY:

SECONDED BY:

AMENDMENT:

MOVED BY:

SECONDED BY:

Mr. Stewart

* 7 MOTION
VOTE: YES

Thompson _X
Foley X
Beyer abgent
Price abgent
Sader abgent
Stewart _X
Chaney absent
Malone X
Cafferata_absen
Ham X

Banner X
TALLY: 6

13

el IFITTTT

AMEND
No

]
LT
w
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4
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»n >
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N I -

ORIGINAL MOTION: Passed X Defaated

AMENDED & PASSED

AMENDED & DEFEATED

AMENDED & PASSED

AMENDED & DEFEATED

Withdrawn

ATTACHED TO MINUTES OF May 19, 1981
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The law of the State of Nevada provides:
"l. The Grand Jury must inquire into . . .
the misconduct in office of public officers

of every description within the county.

"2. The Grand Jury may inquire into and report
on any and all matters affecting the morals,
health and general welfare of the inhabitants

of the county, or of any administrative division
thereof, or of any township, incorporated city,
irrigation district or town therein." ***

NRS 172.175.

Pursuant to the legal responsibility vested in the
Grand Jury, this Jury began its investigation‘of the matters
contained within this report in July, 1974. At the outset, the
Grand Jury investigation focused upon what is commonly referred
to as the Conforte Land Transaction whérein brothel owner Joe
Conforte purchased approximately three hundred forty four (344)
acres of property from a Sparks ranching family, and thereafter
sold a portion of the property to the Convention Authority. The
Grand Jury's investigation also centered upon Sparks City Govern-
ment as it existed prior to the Spring elections of 1975, and
upon the activities of certain members of the then Sparks City
Council.

The scope of the Grand Jury's investigation broaderied
considerably as evidence relevant to one facet of the investi-

gation led to new areas where additional inquiry appeared
“>q 4
=2y
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warranted. As will be seen in this report, by the time that the
investigation was concluded, it reached not only into the

Sparks City Council but also to a degree into the Reno City
Council and the Washoe County Commission. Other public entities,
former public officials, and current public officials also fell
under the purview of the Grand Jury.

The Grand Jury is not issuing any criminal charges.
No crimes have been shown from the evidence discussed in this
report and the Grand Jury stresses that nothing said in this
report is intended to accuse, imply, or create an innuendo that
any person has committed a criminal offense. Because no criminal
charges are being issued, the Grand Jury has elected to release
what it considers to be an in depth report of the major areas
in which investigation and review were undertaken and in which
comment can be made.

Pursuant to Nevada law, the Grand Jury can report on
conduct which does not constitute the commission of a crime and
which is relevant to the health, safety and welfare of the
citizens of Washoe County. Not only does the Grand Jury have
the jurisdiction to report on such conduct, but the members of
this Grand Jury also believe they have an absolute obligation to
report their findings in this particular investigation. This
report represents the Grand Jury's effort in this regard and is
supported by the concurrence of each and every member of the
Grand Jury, no Grand Juror dissenting as to any part of this
report.

Because of the length of this report and the scope

of the Grand Jury's investigation, it is the recommendation of

it e

.
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the Grand Jurors that readers of this report carefully read it
in its entirety and consider the inter-relationship of each part
of the report with the other. Conduct reported in one portion
may not in itself seem particularly significant; however, the
Grand Jurors believe that in the context of the entire report,
everything contained herein is indeed relevant to an enlightened
understanding of the Grand Jury's investigation.

The Grand Jurors believe that this investigation, this
report, and other official action resulting from the investiga-
tion have been most important to the public interest and welfa;e
of the citizens of Reno, Sparks and Washoe County. Because of
the scope of the .investigation and what the Grand Jury considers
to be the importance of its findings, the Jury has ordered copiles
of this report prepared for release to any interested members
of the public. Copies can be obtained at either the Washoe
County Clerk's Office or the Washoe County District Attorney's
Office, both offices located in the Courthouse in downtown Reno.
The Grand Jury is also having copies mailed to all elected
offiéials within this community.
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THE CAPURRO-CONFORTE LAND SALE

I.
BACKGROUND

John Brooke, City Manager of the City of Sparks from
July 1967 to July of 1973, appeared before the Grand Jury and
testified that by 1967 officials of the City of Sparks recog-
nized the fact that a flood control dam was needed in the City
of Sparks in the area of the Capurro-Gault property located near
Sullivan Lane and Wedekind Road. This dam was necessary in order
to capture flood waters coming from Sun Valley. The Capurro-
Gault property was the only natural place for such a dam. As a
result of the City's interest in the land, Brooke contacted the
Capurros to explore the possibility of the City of Sparks
purchasing the land for flood control.

During 1971, Sparks Mayor James Lillard indicated an
interest in pursuing the matter as a joint recreation project
along with flood control. After discussing it with the Mayor,
Brooke was in contact with the Capurro family and actual
negotiations were begun.

II.
THE CAPURRO-GAULT SALE TO CONFORTE

James E. Smith, realtor, testified before the Washoe
County Grand Jury that in approximately September of 1972, he
became interested in the Capurro-Gault land as a potential real
estate prospect. Mr. Smith had previously sold Joe Conforte

approximately two acres of land adjoining Conforte's Sullivan

-]-
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Lane property and considered Joe Conforte to be a logical
purchaser of the Capurro-Gault land because Conforte lived near
the Capurro-Gault land, was believed by Smith to have money,
and had on the occasion of the prior sale handled by Smith,
expressed an interest in the land in the vicinity of his
residence.

At approximately the same time, in October of 1972,
James Smith spoke to Mr. and Mrs. John Capurro and their son
Wayne Capurro, an attorney at law, who acted as spokesman for
the Capurro-Gault family regarding the land. Smith requested
that he be given an exclusive real estate listing on the
approximately three hundred forty four (344) acres located in
the vicinity of Sullivan Lane and Wedekind Road. The Capurros
would not give Smith an exclusive real estate listing, but did
assure him that the family would listen to any bona fide offer
to purchase that Smith might present.

Mr. Smith, shortly thereafter, approached Joe Conforte
and suggested that Conforte buy the land. Conforte was not
interested in the land at that time and Smith abandoned his
efforts to persuade Conforte to purchase the Capurro-Gault land.

In late October or early November 1972, Smith received
a phone call from Joe Conforte asking him to come to Conforte's
house. When Smith arrived at Conforte's, Conforte said that he
had reconsidered the Capurro property. Conforte said he thought
he had a way of putting it together and he told Mr. Smith that
he had it figured out so that he would buy the land and the
City of Sparks and the Fair and Recreation Board (Convention
Authority) would build a golf course. Conforte stated that he
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would end up with about one hundred (100) acres. Conforte said,
"If I get it at the right price, my

acreage will go up to about maybe Twenty

Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) to

Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) an

acre and I'll make myself a million dollars."
Thereafter Smith began negotiating with the Capurros and Gault
on Conforte's behalf. At the same time, representatives of the
City of Sparks continued their discussions with the: Capurros
and Gault about the possibility of buying their land.

In February of 1973, prior to the sale of the land to
Conforte, Sparks Councilman Gordon Foote made a motion that the
Sparks City Council go on record as being in favor of buying
the Capurro-Gault land. Sparks Councilman Vernon and Sparks
Councilman Lemberes voted against the City making a commitment
to buy the land at that time without voter approval. Shortly
théreafter, the Council learned that Conforte had purchased the
Capurro-Gault property.

On March 1, 1973, a deposit agreement was signed by
conforte. (Exhibit No. 1) By June 7, 1973, escrow instructions
replaced other preliminary documents and the sale was concluded
shortly thereafter.

Approximately three hundred forty four (344) acres
were sold to Conforte at Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) an
acre for a total purchase price of One Million Seven Hundred
Twenty Two Thousand Twenty Five Dollars ($1,722,025.00).

Also, Twenty Two Thousand Six Hundred Thirty Two Dollars
($22,632.00) was paid by Conforte for water rights. The Capurro

family agreed to pay a 5 percent commission in connection with

the sale, which commission was in the approximate amount of
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Eighty Six Thousand Dollars ($86,000.00). (Exhibit No. 2)

Mr. James Smith, an associate of Councilman Clyde
Biglieri and his real estate company, washoe Realty, agreed to
a 5 percent real estate commission without the approval or know-
ledge of Washoe Realty or its owner, Reno City Councilman
Biglieri. When Biglieri was informed that Smith had agreed to
accept a 5 percent commission, he objected to the commission as
not being the full and customary amount. Mr. Biglieri particu-
larly objected when he was informed that he, Washoe Realty, and
James Smith would only receive Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000.00)
of the Eighty Six Thousand Dollars ($86,000.00) commission, less
than one-half of the 5 percent commission to be paid by the
Capurros and Gault.

Smith had been informed by Conforte that there would
be no deal unless they, Councilman Biglieri and James Smith,

agreed to certain payments later set forth in a Letter of

(Exhibit No. 3) Those payments were to be made out of the
5 percent real estate commission to be paid by the Sellers,
Capurro and Gault.

Although Biglieri objected to the commission being
smaller than usual and being split as demanded by Conforte,
upon realizing that the deal would not go through unless pay-
ments were made as set forth in the June 5, 1973, Letter of
Instructions, Councilman Biglieri and James Smith agreed to
accept the commission and go along with the payments detailed

in the Letter of Instructions.
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Reno City Councilman Biglieri testified before the
Grand Jury that he told James Smith that he thought the commis-
sion should be split between himself and James Smith because
Smith had not consulted him and obtained his approval before
agreeing to accept a commission that was less than the customary
amount obtained at Washoe Realty. Thus, after Smith agreed, he
received Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) and Councilman
Biglieri received Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00).

The Letter of Instructions of June 5, 1973, (Exhibit
No. 3) was executed by Wayne Capurro, attorney for the Sellers,
and Stanley H. Brown, attorney for Joe Conforte, the Purchaser.
That Letter of Instructions divided the 5 percent commission to
be paid by the Capurros and Gault and pursuant to that Letter
of Instructions, checks were subsequently issued in the amounts
of Ten Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($10,500.00) to S.E.&A.
Engineers and Planners, (Exhibit No. 4); Forty Thousand Dollars
($40,000.00) to Washoe Realty, (Exhibit No. 5); Twenty Thousand
Dollars ($20,000.00) to Humphreys Real Estate, (Exhibit No. 6);
and Sixteen Thousand One Hundred One Dollars and twenty-five
cents ($16,101.25) to Joe Conforte, the Purchaser, (Exhibit
No. 7).

Nowhere in the agreements, documents of title, escrow
jnstructions, and other documents on file in connection with the
l1and transaction was there any mention of the fact that former
State Senator Stanley Drakulich was a real estate broker or
salesman with an interest in this transaction, or that he was
otherwise involved in the Capurro-Gault land transaction with

Conforte. However, former Senator Stanley Drakulich received
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Eighteen Thousand Dollars ($18,000.00) through William Humphreys,
real estate broker. (Exhibit No. 8) The check payable to Mr.
Drakulich was dated June 7, 1973. During the same month, Mr.
Drakulich paid Eighteen Thousand One Hundred Seventy Dollars and
fifty-three cents ($18,170.53) in back taxes and interest
resulting from a criminal prosecution for failure to file a
Federal income tax return.

The fact that former Senator Drakulich received
Eighteen Thousand Dollars ($18,000.00) through William Humphreys
was first made public on May 2, 1974, when the local newspapers
published that fact. (Exhibit No. 9)

Upon appearing before the Grand Jury, Mr. Drakulich
complained that a copy of the $18,000.00 check had been provided
to the newspapers by Sheriff Robert Galli. Drakulich insisted
that the Grand Jury determine whether or not Galli had so
informed the press. Sheriff Galli was called before the Grand
Jury and testified that he did provide the information to the
press.

William Humphreys, realtor, testified that he handled
the Conforte transaction as a favor to Drakulich. Humphreys
testified that Drakulich asked him to receive the money and that
he, Humphreys, received Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for
this favor. Humphreys testified that he knew of nothing that
Drakulich did to earn the Eighteen Thousand Dollars ($18,000.00).
Also, Humphreys testified that he did nothing himself other than
meet Joe Conforte at Drakulich's request. None of the other
witnesses who appeared were aware of anything that Drakulich
had done to earn the commission.
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Mr. Drakulich testified before the Grand Jury that he
heard that there was a land sale transaction taking place and
he approached Joe Conforte and asked Conforte if he could have
a commission in connection with the transaction. Conforte
agreed and although Drakulich was not a party to the land sale
negotiations which took place between Wayne Capurro, attorney
for Sellers, James Smith, Clyde Biglieri, and Stanley Brown,
attorney for Conforte, he received Eighteen Thousand Dollars
($18,000.00) through Humphreys.

Drakulich testified that he did virtually nothing to
earn the commission and asked William Humphreys to handle the
matter for him because he, Drakulich, was busy and involved with
business in the legislature.

III.
THE CONFORTE SALE TO THE CONVENTION AUTHORITY

A) The Confofte Proposal

After the purchase of the Capurro-Gault land by Joe
Conforte, Conforte began a public campaign to sell the center
portion of the land, located in the flood plain area, to a
public agency in Washoe County for the purpose of having a golf
course developed. Conforte told realtor James Smith that the
development of the golf course would enhance the value of the
adjoining property and he, Conforte, would reap a profit on the
future sale and development of the remaining property in an
amount in excess of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00). Other
witnesses confirmed the probability that Conforte would make

a huge profit.
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1 Shortly after the purchase of tha land by Mr. Conforte,

2| councilmam James Vernon and Councilman Pete Lemberes actively

3 sought to have the City of Sparks purchase the land from

4! conforte. However, the City of Sparks did not have sufficient
5| financial resources to purchase the land and develop it into a
golf course.

7 Subsequently, proposals were macde to the Convention

8 | Authority offering to sell the land to them. Again, James

9| vernon, Chairman of the Convention'Authority, was.a strong

10 advocate for the purchase of the Conforte land. In addition to

111 councilman James Vernon, Washoe County Commissioner Gerry Grow,

12} . member and secretary of the Convention Authority, also strongly
13| advocated the purchase of the Conforte land and the development
141 of the golf course. Mr. Grow testified that he advocated the

15 golf course because it would be a good addition to the golf

16 courses already in existence in Washoe County and because he,
17} an avid golfer himself, felt it was a good community investment
18 | for the Convention Authority.

19 The Convention Authority had, in the meantime, with

20 | +he assistance of a citizens' advisory committee, set certain

L priorities for the expenditure of Convention Authority funds.

22| The first priority set by the Board was the erection of an

23 addition to the Centennial Coliseum which would be used, for .

2 among other things, the upcoming National Bowling Congress

= meeting. In order to obtain that convention, the Convention
26 Authority had to give assurances that such a facility would be
</ built because it was anticipated that there would be as many as
oy 28 25,000 participants who would be present in the Reno area for
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1 | several weeks. The second priority set by the Board was the
2 | purchase of the land for the purpose of a golf course in Sparks.
3| The revenues of the Convention Authority were not sufficient to
4| finance both priorities. As time passed, the golf course became
S| the first priority, replacing the addition to the Centennial
6 | Coliseum.
7
B) The Room Tax Increase
Commissioner Gerry Grow advocated a one cent increase
’ in the room tax which is collected from lodgings in the Reno-
10 Sparks area. In order for the room tax to be increased, it was
H necessary that the increase be approved by all three governing
- bodies in Washoe County; the Reno City Council, the Sparks City
" Council, and the Washoe County Commission. The increase was
| 1 first passed by the Washoe County Commission and the Sparks
" City Council.
16
The Reno City Council first voted on the room tax
Y increase on the 25th day of March, 1974. James Vernon and Gerry
° Grow appeared at the Reno City Council meeting and urged passage
v of the one cent increase in the room tax. The vote resulted in
z: a tie. During the vote, Reno Councilman Clyde Biglieri abstained.
29 The reason he gave fqr abstaining was that he had an interest
2 in a motel and thus felt it was a conflict of interest for him
o to vote.
- On May 13th and May 20th, 1974, the issue was brought
. before the Reno City Council with little public notice. Several
o7 interested parties complained about the lack of notice on such
o8 an important issue.
i) . 2111
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On August 12, 1974, the issue was again before the
Council and the roll call vote again resulted in a tie. CouncilH
man Biglieri, who abstained, said if he were to vote, he would
favor the proposed increase. After the vote ended in a tie,
he said that he was going to change his abstention and vote on
the issue. Biglieri then voted in favor of the room tax
jncrease. The increase was thereby approved.

Upon passage of the room tax increase, long term
financing was available to make it possible for the Convention
Authority to fund the addition to the Centennial Coliseum and
to fund the Conforte golf course.

Mr. Biglieri explained that he felt that because Mayor
Sam Dibitonto, a hotel owner, voted he, Biglieri, felt justified
in voting rather than abstaining. Biglieri testified that he
favored the room tax increase because he believed that more
money was needed to promote Reno. He said he was aware of the
fact that a substantial portion of the money was going to be
used to purchase the property owned by Conforte, the same
property from which he, James Smith, and Washoe Realty had
received a Forty Thousand Dollar ($40,000.00) sales commission.
He stated that the fact that he had received a commission from
the Conforte land purchase did not influence his vote. He also
testified that although he had several meetings with and phone
calls from Joe Conforte urging him to vote in favor of the room
tax increase, that those contacts also had no effect on his
vote. When asked whether or not there was any arrangement to
the effect that Biglieri and Washoe Realty would receive future

real estate business from Conforte in the sale of the property
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surrounding the golf course retained by Conforte, Biglieri
testified that there was no arrangement to that effect, but
that he would accept the opportunity to sell the land 1if it
were offered to him by Conforte.

Joe Choma, associated with Councilman Biglieri at
7Jashoe Realty, testified that he had a vague recollection that
they, Washoe Realty and Clyde Biglieri, might be involved in
the sale of Conforte's property in the future.

C) The Proposal to Change the Composition of the
Convention Authority - Senata Bill 152

The Grand Jury found that on February 28, 1973, former
Senator Stanley Drakulich appeared at the regular meeting of the
Washoe County Fair and Recreation Board (Convention Authority)
and spoke in opposition to Senate Bill 152, (Exhibit No. 10),
which would have increased the size of the Convention Authority
to include four members in addition to the five elected public
officials. The Board voted to oppose SB 152 after a promise of
more cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce. The Chamber,
sponsor of SB 152, agreed to withdraw the legislation.

Former Senator Stanley Drakulich testified that his
opposition to the expansion of the membership of the Convention
Authority was in no way related to his receiving the Eighteen
Thousand Dollar ($18,000.00) commission from Joe Conforte in
connection with Conforte's purchase of the Capurro-Gault land.
Drakulich testified that he had opposed the expansion of the
Convention Authority because he did not want the Chamber of

Commerce to have added representation. He felt that the present

composition of the Convention Authority was adequate and superior

3
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a to the proposed expanded Convention Authority.

! D) The Conforte Repurchase Agreement

The golf course portion of Conforte's land was
purchased by the Convention Authority and Washoe County took
title to the property upon the following conditions contained in
the escrow documents.

"If within five (5) years from the
date of purchase, buyer, its successors,
assigns, grantees or permittees shall not
have in good faith commenced construction
of an 18 hole public golf course on said
lands, and, if buyer commences a sale of
said land or a part thereof pursuant to
NRS 244.281, sellers, their heirs or as-
signees, shall have the right to meet or
better the terms of any bid on said land
submitted by any third party at any such
sale."

(Exhibit No. 1l1)
Thus, Conforte was assured that either a golf course
would be built at public expense or he could exercise his option

to repurchase the land he sold to the Convention Authority.

E) Execution of the Sale Agreement

After the details of the purchase agreement were
resolved, the agreement was approved by the Convention Authority
and executed by James Vernon, Convention Authority Chairman, and
Gerry Grow, Secretary of the Convention Authority.

At the time when the final paperwork was available for
signature, Commissioner Gerry Grow was in the State of Washington
on a vacation. At that time, Conforte chartered a private plane
and flew to Spokane, Washington, to return Mr. Grow to Reno for

the purpose of signing the papers. Mr. Grow testified that
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although he could have waited until he completed his vacation
and returnzd to Reno, that he returned early with Mr. Conforte
to save him interest payments on the property. After Grow signed
the documents, Conforte bought nhim an airline ticket back to
Spokane. Grow also accepted On2 Hundred Dollars ($103.00) from
Conforte for the inconvenience occasioned to his vacation. The
Grand Jury finds this conduct of Mr. Grow to be consistent with
the close personal relationship existing between some public
officials and Conforte at the time of the land sale.

Iv.

UNDISCLOSED INVOLVEMENT OF CONFORTE
IN LOCAL PUBLIC AFFAIRS

Joe Conforte's involvement with the public officials
most directly conce;ned in the acquisition of his Sparks
property has been shown in other portions of this report and,
at the least, it is clear that he encouraged both the sale of
his land to the Convention Authority and the passage of the room
tax increase which would finance the land purchase. However,
during the course of the Grand Jury's investigation, there was
evidence that Conforte's interest in major decisions by local
public officials extended well beyond the sale of his Sparks
property.

The Grand Jury found that at the time when the City
of Reno was considering the appointment of Reno's Police Chief,
that Conforte supported and encouraged the appointment of
Colonel Alex Lamberes as Chief. The Grand Jury's evidence

showed nothing more than a friendship between Colonel Lemberes
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and Conforte and the Grand Jury finds no improper motive or
purnose behind Mr. Conforte's support of Colonel Lemberes. Also,
Lemberes was apparently not seriously considered for the position
because, among other reasons, of his lack of experience in
civilian law enforcement. However, what is significant to the
Grand Jury is that Mr. Conforte's involvement in local politics
extended to the point of making private recommendations concern-
ing such an important appointive position as Reno Police Chief.
The Grand Jury also found that Conforte encouraged
members of the Sparks City Council to support the proposed salary
increase for Judge Morrison of the Sparks Municipal Court. Judge
Morrison's salary was later substantially increased. |
The Grand Jury received evidence that at the time
when former Reno City Councilman Sam Dibitonto was seexking the
position of Mayor of the City of Reno he was contacted by
Conforte. The Mayor is chosen by vote of the members of the
Reno City Council. Mr. Dibitonto testified that when he was
approached by Conforte, he was told that if he would make certain
committee appointments, he could count on becoming Mayor.
Dibitonto made no agreements with Conforte, but indicated that
he would consider all of the council members for the committee
appointments. After Dibitonto became Mayor, he mad2 the
particular committee appointments of concern to Conforte. How-
ever, he did not appoint those council members requested by
Conforte. Thereafter, Conforte contacted Dibitonto, accused
Dibitonto of turning him around, and expressed unhappiness with

the appointments Dibitonto made.
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| Conforte was unhappy with Dibitonto and wanted him out of office.

The Grand Jury also received other evidence that

The Grand Jury wishes to stress, however, that it received no
evidence that Mr. Dibitonto's successor in office, who defeated
him in the last election, was a candidate who was being support.d
by Conforte and certainly no inferences should be drawn against
Mr. Dibitonto's successor.

The Grand Jury makes note that in these two instances
where Conforte supported certain appointments for important
official positions, those appointments were not made. Nonethe-
less, it is apparent to the Grand Jury and the Grand Jury finds
that Mr. Conforte's relationship with certain local officials
reached a point where he believed that he had some considerable
effect upon decisions relative to official action. The Grand
Jury cites. these examples not as any kind of criticism of the
people being supported, but rather as a reflection of the formerly
undisclosed scope of Conforte's attempted involvement in the
public's business.

v

CONFORTE'S ASSOCIATION WITH PUBLIC
OFFICIALS INVOLVED WITH THE LAND SALE

A) The Mustang Meetings

The Washoe County Grand Jury has investigated the
relationship of Joe Conforte with the various public officials
connected with the land transaction and finds the following:

During the time that the Conforte land transaction was

pending before the three local governing bodies and the Convention

Authority, James Vernon, Gerry Grow and Pete Lemberes regularly
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visited Joe Conforte's Mustang brothel. At that time, Vernon

| was the Convention Authority Chairman and a Sparks Councilman,

Grow was the Convention Authority secretary and a Washoe County
Commissioner, and Lemberes was a Sparks Councilman. At several
of these Mustang visits, the three met with Cornforte and public
business was discussed.

The Grand Jury has received testimony from Vernon,
Lemberes and Grow that they would enter the Mustang complex and
instead of going to the public reception area, they would go to
a special area of the brothel where food, drink, and the services
of prostitutes were available to them free of charge. On oc-
casion, other public officials and guests went to the brothel
with Vernon, Lemberes and Grow.

In addition to the testimony of Vernon, Grow and
Lemberes, the above finding was verified by other witnesses
before the Grand Jury. Vernon, Grow and Lemberes were on
Conforte's "comp list" at the brothel. Additionally, meetings
were held by the three with Conforts on occasion at locations
other than the brothel.

At one meeting at the brothel attended by Conforte,
Vernon, Lemberes and Grow on Conforte's birthday, Conforte
discussed getting the "right pebple" in public office. They
also discussed the one cent room tax increase and it was
suggested that they "get rid" of Mayor Dibitonto because he was
the one who was stopping the room tax from going through.

The Grand Jury's investigation has also revealed that
Mustang prostitutes attended a party for local public officials
held by Pete Lemberes at his Sparks residence.

- <118
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Commissioner Grow testified that the Mustang meetings
had no effect upon his judgment regarding matters pending before
the Convention Authority and the Washoe County Commission. He
also defended the receipt of complimentary services of prosti-
tutes as being no different than receiving a complimentary meal
from a local casino. A Grand Juror asked Mr. Grow whether he
thought the public would accept his, Grow's, rationalization
of their conduct at Mustang. Mr. Grow responded, "I don't care
if they ao or not," and added that he might not run for re-

election next term anyway.

B} Conforte Campaign Contributions

In addition to the contacts of Joe Conforte with the
above mentioned public figures, the Washoe County Grand Jury
has determined that Joe Conforte spends large amounts of money
each election in the form of campaign contributions and other
assistance to political candidates. Also, Joe Conforte has
paid at least $3,000.00 to $4,000.00 each election year for the
results of a local political poll conducted by Mr. Brent Tyler.

The Grand Jury has inquired into campaign contribu-
tions made by Joe Conforte to key public officials who served
on the Convention Authority, supported the Conforte land trans-
action, or were otherwise found in the course of the Jury's
investigation to be associated with Joe Conforte. Although
the Grand Jury has not at this time conducted any major inquiry
into campaign contributions received by public officials in
Washoe County, a future Grand Jury may wish to probe further

into Mr. Conforte's involvement in and influence in public af-

2119

-17-




O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

e

= =5

fairs in Washoe County.

Mr. Clyde Biglieri, Reno City Councilman, testified
that he was contacted by Pete Lemberes and James Vernon and was
taken to Mustang where he received a Five Hundred Dollar ($500.00)
campaign contribution from Joe Conforte.

Mr. Roy Pagni, former Washoe County Commissioner, also
a member of the Convention Authority at the time of the purchase
of the Conforte land, testified that he received Two Thousand
Dollars ($2,000.00) during his last political campaign.

Mr. Michael Schultz, former Sparks Councilman,
testified that when he first ran for the Sparks City Council, he
was contacted by Councilman James Vernon who offered Conforte
aid in Schultz's campaign. At first Schultz declined, but
later he asked for and received Two Hundrad Dollars ($200.00)
from Conforte.

Mr. Carl Bogart, Reno Mayor and Convention Authority
member, received One Thousand One Hundred Fifty Five Dollars and
ninety-eight cents ($1,155.98) during his last campaign from
Joe Conforte.

At his first appearance before the Washoe County Grand
Jury, Mayor Carl Bogart was asked if Conforte ever contributed
to his campaign. He said, "Yes." When asked how much was
contributed he said he couldn't answer that because the contribu-
tions came directly to his campaign manager and although that
campaign manager gave him a list of his contributions, he couldn't
remember the specific figures. He testified that he had no

idea how much Conforte had given him.
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Later, Mayor Bogart claimed that he did not receive
any of Conforte's money. He explained that in his prior testi-
mony he was merely referring to the fact that Conforte had said
that he would help Bogart in his campaign. Bogart said he told'
Conforte to keep everything above board. According to Bogart,
he told Conforte that he had hired a campaign manager. Bogart
then said he heard nothing more about any Conforte contributions.
Mayor Bogart was contradicted by his campaign manager.
He testified that he did not receive the bulk of theecontribu-
tions in Mr. Bogart's campaign, but rather that Bogart himself
received most of the contributions. Among those contributions
received by Bogart's campaign manager were two contributions,
one in the amount of Eight Hundred Sixty Six Dollars and seventy-
eight cents ($866.78) and another in the amount of Two Hundred
Eighty Nine Dollars and twenty cents ($289.20) for a total of
One Thousand One Hundred Fifty Five Dollars and ninety-eight
cents ($1,155.98). These checks were received from political
pollster Brent Tyler. The campaign manager indicated that he
was not sure of the original source of the two checks from
Brent Tyler, but assumed that they were from Joe Conforte.
Political pollster Brent Tyler testified that those
two contributions, in a total amount of One Thousand One Hundred
Fifty Five Dollars and ninety-eight cents ($1,155.98), were
made to Bogart by Conforte. Tyler testified that he and Bogart
had discussed the contributions and that he, Tyler, solicited
the money from Conforte with Bogart's permission and approval.

At the time, according to Tyler, Bogart said that he did not

care that people knew about the solicitations from Conforte.
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There is also evidence that Conforte has given other
gratuitzies to public officials.

Although not a campaign contribution, in August of
1972 former Councilman Pete Lenperes bought Joe Conforte's 1972
Lincoln Continental Mark IV. Mr. Lemberes testified that he
paid Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500.00) cash for the
Conforte car and received no bill of sale, papers or receipt

other than a Department of Motor Vehicles green slip.
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The Grand Jury is charged with the responsibility of
inquiring into allegations of official misconduct. In follow-
ing this mandate, the Grand Jury has used every available means
to obtain the truth in its inquiry, an inquiry which has con-=
tinued for nearly two years. After answering the Grand Jury's
questions, every witness has been given the opportunity to have
his say and has been given the opportunity to present whatever

evidence he wishes. >4 P
ol23
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Furthermore, the Grand Jurv is confident that the
community will find that the efforts expended in making this
inquiry were worthwhile, productive, and in the best interests
of the citizens of Washoe County.

VI.

THE CONFORTE LAND TRANSACTION
AND THE PUBLIC'S INTEREST

A) Conflict of Interest and the Need for
Disclosure

The Convention Authority's purchase of Conforte's
property is illustrative of the problems of conflict of interest
which arise when officials fail to disclose their interest in
matters pending before public agencies. The Grand Jury finds
that such failure to disclose possible conflicts of intérest
cloud the reputation and integrity of the public official him-
self. Such non-disclosure also has the natural effect of
increasing the cynicism of the citizenry, many of whom are
already disillusioned with the performance of governmental
officials.

The Grand Jury recommends that a public official regard
his office as a public trust and always do everything in his
power to avoid the appearance of impropriety. Public office
should not be used to assist friends or amass wealth. To
instill public confidence in government, officials should at all
times act openly and in the best interest of the public. When
a conflict of interest does exist, the public official should
always reveal not only the conflict but all of the reasons for
the conflict.

pAVA:
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B) Former Soarks Councilman Vernon, former
SnarXks Councilman Lemberas, and Cormmissioner
Grow

The Grand Jury finds, in consideration of all of its
other findings in this investigation, that the manner in which
the Conforte land transaction was conducted was not in the
public's best interest.

The Grand Jury further finds that former Sparks
Councilmen James Vernon and Pete Lemberes and Washoe County
Commissioner Gerry Grow were closely involved with Joe Conforte.
At the same time, they did not disclose to the public their
relationship with Conforte and proceeded to actively crusade
to have public agencies purchase Conforte's property knowing
that Conforte would realize huge profits if the sale were
consurmated. In so acting these public officials failed to
honor a trust which had been placed in them by the citizens
and voters of their respective constituencies.

As mentioned in the preface of this report, in
reaching these findings, this is not to suggest that Vernon,
Lemberes and Grow are guilty of criminal activity. However,
it is clear to the Grand Jury and the Grand Jury finds that
these public officials have by their actions not served the
public's best interest.

The Grand Jury also finds the purchase of the
Conforte land and the agreement to develop a golf course were
not handled in a businesslike fashion. The Grand Jury does
not substitute its own judgment on the merits of the purchase;
however, the Jury is alarmed at the apparent slipshod handling

by the Convention Authority of this important matter. . Noéfég
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E did the Convention Authority accept a vague and indefinite
? proposal without careful study, but the Authority members worked
headlong into an increase in the room tax and urged their fellow
elected public officials into passing the increase when no one
knew for sure how riuch money was needed or would be used for
pending Convention Authority projects. It appears that many
people were encouragad to submit requests for Convention Authori-
ty funds in order to engender public support for and justify the
tax increase when there was no definite plan or commitment to
fund any projects other than the purchase of the Conforte land
and the Coliseum expansion. Even as late as February'1976, it
had not yet been decided which public agency will bear the
expense of operating and maintaining the golf course.

Former Mayor Sam Dibitonto expressed some of the
findings of the Grand Jury when he said the following at a
Convention Authority meeting on April 26, 1974:

"We're sitting here ready to spend a
million point some dollars and you don't even
know what you're buying. Why you haven't got
any idea what the contract stipulations are.
You don't know what the time frame is. You
don't know anything. We're just bound and
determined we're going to buy 209 acres so
that we can make the other four and a half
or five, or whatever percentage, worth a ton
of money. Now, I think before we sit down
and spend this kind of monev; now, you may
in your own mind be firmly convinced, but I
am responsible to people that are going to
have to pay this, and I don't like to spend
twenty bucks, let alone a million point two,
unless I get Mr. Torvinen to tell me what the
hell we're buying. Now, if you want to go vote
for it; vou guys have got me snowed and you've
got me outnumbered, so I just thought I'd tell
you for the record that this is a tremendous
way to do business. 1I've never been on a
Board in my life that's done it this way."

<1<

-24-




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

25

26

27

28

S

Notwithstanding Mayor Dibitonto's statement, the other

' Convention Authority members proceeded to approve the acguisition

TR TR ST

Those members were County Commissioners Gro& and Pagni, Sparks
Councilman Vernon, and Reno Councilman Carl Bogart. Although
not a member of the Convertion Authority, Sparks Councilman
Lemberes was also present and expressed his strong support for
the acquisition. Not only has the Convention Authoritv spent
approximately Nine Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($930,000.00)

for the golf,course property, but an additional One Million Five

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000.00) to Two Million Dollars

. ($2,000,000.00) will be needed to develop the golf course, erect

necessary buildings and purchase equipment.

As a result of the Convention Authority's acquisition
of the Conforte property, and assuming that a golf course is
devaloped as planned, according to testimony before tha Grand
Jury, Conforte may make over One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)

in profit.

C) Former State Senator Stanlev Drakulich

In the case of former State Senator Stanley Drakulich,
the Grand. Jury finds that he, by his actions in concealing his
involvement in the Conforte-Capurro land transaction, did not
act in the public's best interest. There is no good reason
for his failure to be listed in the official documents of the
land transaction as being one who received monies. Furthermore,
Mr. Drakulich failed to be forthright and open concerning the
Eighteen Thousand Dollar ($18,000.00) payment to him from Mr.

Conforte. Only after the payment was disclosed by the media did

_4Z7
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he, Drakulich, acknowledgz2 receiving it.

It is not in the public's best interest when any pub
official receives an extraordinarily large fee for doin~ very
little and further attempts to conceal such a fact from the

public when the public itself is involved.
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EXPANDIMG CONFORTE RELATIONSHIP WITH PUBLIC OFFICIALS

Of major concern to the Grand Jury is the expanding
and rather secrative relationships which have developed between
Joe Conforte and some public officials in this area. 1In 1962,
Mr. Conforte was convicted of the felony offense of Extortion

of the then Washoe County District Attorney, William Raggio, and

- was sentencad to three to five years in the Nevada State Prison.

26 !

27 |

28

In 1963, Conforte was also convicted of the federal felony of-
fense of Income Tax Evasion by lleans of a Fraudulent Tax Return
and was sentenced to federal prison for a term of three years.

2129
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@ i Since release from prison, Conforte's primary source

1

9 of income has obviously been prostitution and he operates what
3 1s probably the largest public house of prostitution in the

4 United States. The Grand Jury has also discovered that many of
5% Conforte's close associates are ex-felons who have been convicted
6§ of serious offenses in the State of Nevada and elsewhere.

7? The Grand Jury's investigation of the Conforte land
8@ sale reveals that !lr. Conforte established substantial contacts
g | and rapport with a number of the public officials who were

10 directly involved in the land sale. It is apparent that he

11} either contributed heavily to their political campaigns or

12 granted them other favors or gratuities as in the case of four

13 of the five members of the Convention Authority. Not only did

Conforte have this relationship with a majority of the members

14
15 of the Convention Authority, but that those members also
16| represented the Sparks City Council, Reno City Council, and the

17 | Washoe County Commission. These are the three governmental
18 entities which make virtually all decisions bearing upon the
19 public's welfare in Washoe Countyv.
20 Additionally, other evidence discloses that at the

21 time of the Conforte land sale, Mr. Conforte also held similar
22 i associations with Sparks City Councilman Lemberes and Reno City
23 | Councilman Biglieri. It appears that through this spreading

24  association with local public officials, Conforte has gone so

25 | far as to attempt to influence some of these public officials

26

27

to act in his favor and, in at least one instance, attempted to
influence them to consider a police chief for the City of Reno

of his choosing.
28 ]
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m2 Grand Jury's investigation has essentially focused

m

uvon the Conforte land sale andé Sparks government. With the
excaeption of former State Senator Stanley Drakulich, the Grand
Jur;s has not investigated or inquired into the role of Mr.
Conforte in regard to other local officials such as senators,
assemblymen, other city and county officers and statewida
officers. However, from evidance adduced before the Grand Jury,
it appears that at the least, Mr. Conforte has been an active
supporter of either some of these office holders or of political
candidates wnc unsuccessfully vied for such offices in recent
elections. The Jury recognizes that such supvort is an absolute
right and certainly within the prerogative of Mr. Conforte.
However, basad on the experience of this investigation, it
appears that the local officials who have been involved with
Confortae have done so without disclosing this relationship to

the public.

\
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Considering the Jury's findings in this investigation,
the Grand Jurors find such spreading and undisclosed relation-

ships definitely not to be in the best interests of good govern-

| ment or an educated public. It is the recommendation of this

Grand Jury that all public officials who have received fiaancial
support or other favors from Mr. Conforte or other persons
having a financial interest in pending public matters should
voluntarily disclose these relationships to the public. It is
also recommended that such relationships, especially where they
have not been publicly disclosed, be considered for review in

future vyears.

THE MUSTANG BROTHEL AND ITS EFFECT ON WASHOE COUNTY

I.
THE HEALTH HAZARD

Joe Conforte's presence in public affairs in Washoe
County is very evident from the foregoing descriptions of his
activities. The presence of prostitutes in Storey County is
also apparent in Wasnoe County.

The Grand Jury has received evidence from a State
Health official that there is virtually no State inspection oOr
regulation of Mevada brothels. Only when a case of venereal
disease is reported to State authorities by a local doctor does

o 21
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the State Health Department become involved in tracing the

disease and requirinuy treatment of it. Because of the nature

of the prostitution business, few, if any, patrons of a diseased
prostitute can be traced. The patron and his intimate contacts,
as a practical matter, cannot be contacted by the Health
Department and informed that they have been exposed to venereal
disease.

Although a private physician is hired by the
prostitutes and Joe Conforte, in some instances the disease is
not discovered for up to thirty days after it is contracted by
the prostitutes. If the prostitute has only ten contacts a day.
five days a week, 200 patrons could be infected.

Mr. Robert DelCarlo, Sheriff of Storey County,
testified before the Grand Jury that although between thirty and
fifty prostitutes work at the Mustang brothel, no Storey County

officials enforce health laws in Storey County or in any way

. inspect the Mustang brothel. The only enforcement that takes

place is the registration of prostitutes by Sheriff DelCarlo's
officers. However, he testified that the Sheriff's Department
only registers prostitutes every thirty to sixty days. Thus,
a prostitute could work for thirty to sixty days before being
registered. Sheriff DelCarlo admitted that during a one year
period in 1974 and 1975, he and his office did not register any
prostitutes or check the prostitutes to see if they had work
permits.

Also, Sheriff DelCarlo admitted that the registration
process as practiced in Storey County is of little value. He
testified that he allows the prostitutes to give names other

<133
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than their true names. He also admitted that no real effort is
made to correctlv identify the prostitutes or check their
respective bacxgrounds. Further, he testified that no applicant
has ever bzen d=saied permission to work at the Mustang brothel
for any reason.

ITI.
SOLICITATION AND PANDERING

During the course of the Grand Jury's investigation,
a qualified witness estimated that 75 percent of the Mustang
brothel's business comes from the Reno area. Many of those
customers are tourists who are driven to Mustang in taxi cabs.
Taxi drivers receive 30 percent of whatever is spent by the
customer at the brothel.

As a result of the financial inducements offered to
cab drivers, bell hops, etc., there is a dangsr of widespread
solicitation and pandering taking place within Washoe County
where prostitution is illegal.

There is also evidence of prostitutes traveling to
Washoe County from Storey County ard on occasion performing
their services in residences, hotels and motels.

The members of the Grand Jury find that State, County
and City statutes and ordinances are not adequate to control
prostitution, solicitation and pandering that takes place in
Washoe County. Thus, the Grand Jury recommends that the
respective governmental agencies act to orovide effective laws
to control prostitution, pandering and solicitation in Washoe

County.
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The Washo= County Grand Jury finds that prostitution
in Storey County constitutes a nealth and safety hazard to
washoe Countv because of Storey County's failure to adequately
supervise, inspect and identify the prostitutes. Since the .
prostitutes are allowed to give false nanmes and are not required
to identify themszalves adequately for the purposes of health
inspections and otner legitimate inquiries, the residents of
adjoining counties are not adequately protected from the
potential health hazards posed by the Mustang prostitutes.

ITI.

CONFORTE'S UNDERWORLD. CONTACTS AND
THEIR EFFECT ON WASHOE COUNTY

The Grand Jury finds that Mustang employees and their
associates have a tendency to be involved in crimes including
property crimes and drug traffic in Washoe County. It is -
important for Washoe County and other counties and state law
enforcement agencies to keep track of these people and to know
their true identities and whereabouts.

The Grand Jury finds that Joe Conforte has associated
with known and suspected organized crime figures from various
parts of the United States. Furthermore, he has employed,
consorted with, and been a friend of many ex-felons. Among those
he has associated with and employed are ex-felons who have been
convicted in Washoe County and elsewhere of crimes ranging from
armed robbery to burglary, grand larceny, drug offenses and
other serious offenses.

Although Mr. Conforte, himself an ex—-felon, is free to

associate with whomever he wishes, and although the above as-
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' sociations do not constitute a violation of criminal law by

Conforte, it is appar=ant from the evidence received by the

21

3§ Grand Jury and the Grand Jury finds that Conforte and his

4? prostitution business attract an undesirable element which poses
55 a threat to the safety and welfare of the citizens of Washoe

63 County.

7 This Grand jury has chosen not to pass upon the wisdom

g | of allowing prostitution in the State of Nevada. However, in

9| light of its findings in this report, the Grand Jury recommends
10 that if prostitution is to be continued within Nevada, that

11 | State Legislators representing Washoe County consider supporting

12 | laws which would create restrictions and controls upon the

13 | prostitution industry which would protect the health, safety
14 | and welfare of the.citizens of the State. '
15
16 SPARK3 MUNICIPAL COURT, JUDGE MORRISON
17 '
18 The Washoe County Grand Jury has received testimony

19 | that former Sparks Councilmen James Vernon, Pete Lemberes and

20 | Michael Schultz have on occasion approached Judge Morrison

21 | and received dismissals or reductions of traffic charges pending
22 | before the Court against other persons.

23 Judge Morrison testified that former Councilman

24 | Lemberes spoke to him about seven or eight pending cases and at
25 | Lemberes' reguest, Morrison dismissed the cases.

(:} 26 | Morrison testified that he was likewise approached by
27 | former Councilman James Vernon regarding matters pending before

28 the Court twelve to fifteen times and he, Morrison, dismissed

@ a4 2136
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eight or nine of those cases.

Also, according to Judge Morrison, on two occasions
former Sparks Councilman Micha=l Schultz requested the reduction
of cases involving a friend. Charges were reduced in both cases.

After having been approached by those Councilmen,

Judge Morrison asked some of the defendants to come in and speak

‘to him on the issues. On several occasions, he dismissed cases

Qithout asking the defendants to come in at all.

There is also evidence which suggests that there have
been reductions and dismissals granted at the request of the
Sparks Police Department.

The Washoe County Grand Jury could find no paymént or
other consideration given for the dismissals and, therefore,
finds that no crime has been committed. The Grand Jﬁry firmly
believes that the judiciary on all levels should not in any
way allow other public officials to influence its decisions on
pending court matters. It is this sort of partiality which
gives rise to much of the criticism levied against the criminal

justice system.

GENERAL ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION - HOSPITALITY HUT

During the month of April 1972, former State Senator
Stanley Drakulich came to the office of Jerry Higgins, Com-
munity Relations Director for the Sparks Nugget. Drakulich told
Higgins that he, Drakulich, knew the relationship between the
Nugget and Councilman Vernon and Councilman Lenberes was not

good. Drakulich said he felt he could help the Nugget improve
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their relationship with Vernon and Lemberes. In the conversa-
tion, Drakulich mentioned that he was employed by General
Acceptance Corporation (G.A.C.) and would like to establish a
land sales booth in the Nugget casino. Drakulich was told that
the Nugget's floor space was at a premium and that officials

of the casino would not favor such an idea, but Mr. Higgins
assured Drakulich that he would set up a meeting with John
Ascuaga .so Drakulich could disc¢uss the land sales booth with
Mr. Ascuaga.

Shortly thereafter, Mr. Higgins received a.phone call
from Drakulich. He asked Jerry Higgins to have lunch with
Sparks Councilman Vernon and Councilman Lemberes the next day
at the Sambos Restaurant in Sparks. At the meeting, Vernon,
Lemberes and Drakulich said they would like to improve théir
relationship with the Nugget. Higgins told them that he hoped
the Nugget did have a good relationship with them. Higgins was
again asked if he would set up the meeting with John Ascuaga
and Pete Carr so Stan Drakulich could discuss putting a land
sales booth in the Nugget.

Jerry Higgins discussed Drakulich's proposal with
John Ascuaga. Mr. Ascuaga was opposed to the land sales pro-
motion being associated with the Nugget; however, he agreed to
meet with Drakulich.

Later, Mr. Higgins received a call at home from James
Vernon who said he was attending a party at the Rodeway Inn.
Vernon asked Higgins to pave the way for the Drakulich meeting

with John Ascuaga the next day. Vernon said that if Higgins
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would help the Senator get his land sales booth, the Nugget's
troubles with the Sparks City Council would be over. Hiz3ins

told Vernon that he would set up the meeting, but that he

! couldn't assure Vernon of anything regarding the land sales

. booth.

Approximately five minutes later, Higgins received a
call from Pete Lemberes. Lemberes said he was as the same party
at the Rodeway Inn. He also asked Higgins to do what he could
to help the Senator. Lemberes also said he thought the Nugget
should run some insurance business Stan's way and "let him make
a buck." The meeting was set up the next day and Stan Drakulich
and a representative from G.A.C. met with John Ascuaga. Mr.
Ascuaga told Drakulich and the representative from G.A.C. that
he would not allow the land sales business in the Sparks Nugget.

Drakulich was perturbed when Ascuaga turned him down.
Drakulich later told a member of the Nugget's management, "I

will get Mr. Ascuaga one way or another."”

About a week later, a member of the Nugget management
received information that there was going to be a G.A.C.
Hospitality Booth placed on City property in front of the
Nugget and that the proposal was scheduled before the Sparks
City Council. Nugget officials immediately contacted their
attorney. He represented them at the Sparks City Council meet-
ing held on June 12, 1972, and opposed the proposed placement
of the Hospitality Hut on City property arguing that such an
arrangement would be an illegal use of City property. Sparks

City Attorney Paul Freitag agreed that it would be illegal for
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the City to use the property in the proposed manner. Councilman
Vernon and Councilman Lemberes supported the proposal, but it
was nevertheless defeated.

After the meeting, the Nugget's attorney and Nugget
officials left the building and were encountered by Stan
Drakulich in the parking lot. Drakulich said that they had the
last laugh this time, but the future would unveil secrets of
things to come or words to that effect. Drakulich was very
angry and upon being asked by the Nugget's attorney if he was
going to use his position of public trust as a State Senator
to try to get even with John Ascuaga, Drakulich said no, but
said he, Drakulich, was a "very hot bohunk.”

The Grand Jury finds that this type of conduct by

public officials is clearly not in the public's best interest.

LEMBERES' ATTEMPT TO REDUCE SALARY OF
SPARKS CITY ATTORNEY PAUL FREITAG

The Washoe County Grand Jury subpoenaed former Council-
man Pete Lemberes on several occasions during February of 1975.
He was questioned about several matters including some dealings
with Sparks City Attorney Paul Freitag.

On the 24th day of March, 1975, Pete Lemberes in a
speech before the Sparks City Council, viciously attacked Paul
Freitag suggesting that Mr. Freitag had engaged in improper
conduct. Lemberes then requested that Freitag draft an ordinance
that would reduce his, Freitag's, salary from $17,500.00 a

year to $10,000.00 per year.
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At the first recess of the Council meeting on that

date, Lemberes approached Freitag and said,
"T hate to stab you in the back,

but I don't like what I'm hearing from

the Grand Jury. You have been singing

like a bird."

The Washoe County Grand Jury has found no improper
conduct by Sparks City Attorney Paul Freitag. He appeared and
testified before the Grand Jury pursuant to subpoena and appeared
to the Jurors to be both a truthful and candid witness.

The measure introduced by Lemberes was allowed to
die without further action by Lemberes and other members of the
Sparks City Council.

The Washoe County Grand Jury finds the conduct of
Mr. Lemberes in this regard the same as a witness who appeared
before the Sparks Council and spoke on Mr. Freitag's behalf
during the hearing on the ordinance regarding Mr. Freitag's

salary. The witness stated that the proposed amendment of Mr.

Freitag's salary was ". . . a vicious exercise of raw political

power."

THE HELMS GRAVEL PIT

In 1968, Mr. Robert Helms, contractor and businessman,
completed his purchase of a parcel of land bordering on the
City of Sparks east of McCarran Boulevard and north of Interstate;
Highway 80. As a result of the sale of the property to Helms,
the City of Sparks became a third party beneficiary to the sale.

The agreement provided that Sparks was entitled to some portion
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of the property when Helms completed his excavation of aggregate.
However, the terms of the agreement were not clearly defined and
the City of Sparks was not sufficiently informed as to what
portion of the land it was entitled to and when the land would
be conveyed to the City. Therefore, it became necessary for
the City of Sparks to enter into negotiations to reach an agree-
ment concerning the rights and obligations of Helms and the
City of Sparks over the gravel pit property.

As a result of the Grand Jury's inquiry, the Grand Jury
became concerned that the City of Sparks had gone for such a
long period of time without any definition of its legal rights
and obligations regarding the gravel pit. No agreement had been
negotiated with Mr. Helms and no law suit had been filed to
determine the parties' respective rights. Only after the Grand
Jury began its inquiry in February of 1975 were intensive'
negotiations begun. An agreement between Helms and the City of
Sparks was executed January 12, 1976.'

The Grand Jury finds that the Sparks City Council
and Sparks City Attorney were negligent in not insisting that
this important agreement with Mr. Helms be concluded more
rapidly. A delay of more than six years is not diligent atten-
tion to a matter of such importance to the City of Sparks and
its citizens.

During the Grand Jury's inquiry into the status of
the gravel pit, located in what is répidly becoming a residential
area of the City of Sparks, the Grand Jury found that Washoe

County was the local governmental entity which was responsible

for zoning and regulation of the Helms gravel pit. This is
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because the pit is still located within Washoe County and has
not been annexed into the City of Sparks. The Grand Jury was

surprised to find that the City of Sparks and Washoe County did

| very little to study the effect of the pit upon the surrounding

property. There was varying testimony among experts who
testified before the Grand Jury concerning the effect of the
excavation on the water table in the adjacent area upon which
housing developments are located. There was also varying
testimony regarding the proper, safe, and acceptable slope of
the interior of the gravel pit.

It is apparent to the members of the Grand Jury that
little thought, study and investigation was given to the impact
of the gravel pit upon surrounding areas, both as to long term
effects and short term effects. This is particularly significant
in view of the Grand Juéy's finding that the pit area is one of
the worst and most conspicuous eyesores in the entire Truckee
Meadows.

On the 18th day of March, 1968, Mr. Helms was granted
a special use permit by the Board of Adjustment of Washoe County.
The permit was granted on the condition that the excavation be
done in compliance with all applicable ordinances'of Washoe
County, a $5,000.00 bond be posted and that the project be
reviewed in one year.

Mr. Helms has conducted his excavation of that property
since 1968. According to Mr. Robert Vice, Washoe County
Engineer, County records reveal only one formal inspection of the
pit, a year later in 1969.
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The Grand Jury is critical of the fact that Washoe
County, the Board of Adjustment and the Regional Planning
Commission have failed to check, supervise and control property
owners whose property is being used pursuant to special use
permits. After those permits are issued, there does not appear
to be any person or governmental agency in Washoe County which
acts as an inspection and enforcement arm to assure the citizens
of this community that the people operating under special use
permits are in compliance with terms and conditions of their
permits.

The Grand Jury finds that such a procedure can lead to
alarming results in a rapidly growing community. The Grand Jury
recommends that the Regional Planning Commission and the various
governmental agencies in the County and City adopt procedures
whereby special use permits and other variances and procedures
allowed by the agencies on a temporary basis are reviewed and
scrutinized from a planning standpoint periodically in ofder to

insure the public that its interests are being served.

THE DAIRY INDUSTRY IN WASHOE COUNTY

I.
'REBATES AND ILLEGAL CONDUCT

During the course of the Grand Jury's investigation
into the reported solicitation by former Sparks Councilman
Vernon of Sid Doan for the milk account at Sierra Sid's Union
76 Station, the Washoe County Grand Jury subboenaed Ronald

<134
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Averett from the Meadow Gold Milk Company. He appeared and
testified on the 22nd day of January, 1975. Among other things,
Averett testified that some wholesale milk dealers in the Reno
area and throughout Nevada were engaged in illegal conduct
including the giving of illegal rebates to retailers. This
information was later made public during a preliminary hearing
involving criminal charges against former Councilmen Vernon and
Lemberes, and has since been used by Attorney General Robert
List in challenging milk pricing and other dairy commission
practices in Nevada.

The Washoe County Grand Jury is pleased that it was
able to ﬁncover these improper practices and believes that as
a result of the disclosure, hundreds of thousands of dollars
have been saved by Nevada consumers. This saving of consumers’
dollars alone appears to have far exceeded the total cost.to
Washoe County taxpayers of the Grand Jury's entire investigation.

This discovery has also already led to valuable
reforms in Nevada's milk industry. 1In this regard, the Grand
Jury applauds the work of Attorney General List. His three-
part report on the dairy industry and the dairy commission is
an outstanding public service document which, hopefully, will
result in drastic changes and improvements in the regulation of
the dairy industry in Nevada. ‘

II.

OFFER OF A MILK SALES CONTRACT TO SID DOAN'S
SIERRA 76 TRUCK STOP BY COUNCILMAN VERNON

As a major part of its investigation into Sparks

government, the Grand Jury investigated an alleged incident

_4_
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involving the offer of a milk sales contract by Sparks Council-
man and Meadow Gold salesman James Vernon to Sid Doan of Sierra
Sid's 76 Truck Stop in Sparks. The evidence regarding this
portion of the Grand Jury's investigation and regarding otﬁer
dairy product transactions was directed to the attention of the
Washoe County District Attorney for consideration of whether
prosecution should be undertaken by the District Attorney prior
to completion of the Grand Jury's investigation. Subsequently,
the District Attorney authorized the filing of a criminal
complaint against former Councilmen James Vernon and Pete
Lemberes. Because that prosecution is still pending, the Grand
Jury, on the advice of the Washoe County District Attorney's
Office, will make no comment at this time concerning its

investigation into these matters.

SUTTER HILL SHOPPING CENTER

The Washoe County Grand Jury has spent considerable
time investigating the land sale transaction in which the
property located at the corner of McCarran Boulevard and Prater
Way was ultimately sold to the Sutter Hill Company. The Grand
Jury wishes to state that the conduct of officials of the
Sutter Hill Company is in no way a subject matter of the
investigation. They have done nothing of which the Grand Jury
is aware that would invite concern. In regard to other parties
and participants relative to these transactions there has been
some evidence which indicates the possibility of criminal

conduct.
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However, since a key figure in the transactions,
realtor Bruce Morton, cannot be located, the Grand Jury has
chosen to take no action and to make no comment concerning its
findings at this time.

This concludes the Grand Jury's report.

In completing its investigation, the Grand Jury wishes
to express its appreciation to the special investigative unit of
the Washoe County Sheriff's Office headed by Lieutenant Gary
Aiazzi. This division of trained investigators has conducted
extensive investigation which uncovered valuable evidence later
presented to the Grand Jury. The Grand Jury compliments what
it finds to be the fine performance of Lieutenant Aiazzi and the

men and women of his division.

ety AR




$§422. £090..09.

-

miioames JocConforte T MARCH. 1, 1973 . .

euizk 8. [S- 3§ S (nreein CALLED PUBCIIASLA)Y
caw 3 tarernmon o EIVE TBQUSAND ~rmrosesrassmons smsssasnemes=(8.5,.000.00.. . . ) Dstern
01 @ €e30il o €e:9,°° 6! 11 Purthare prite of INe faltowing deserided praperty, 1it.3%0d in e City of

Cosnlyof oot V’T.“‘.' s)_\oc e Sinto b .. N.C.Y.:‘.@i...,....._._., Lnown os:.. .!\'OInn Ga“lt

‘and the E. H. Capurro property lying in _Sections 29-30-31-32

- emeescmmiieas

._:1...' zo -\'r R-20 East.

Tor 1\ tatal pusshuse prige ol MO E
Dupesit 1 beiswrensed 19 3.200,.000..0Q
The balence of 1he 3., 010 pricois to bo paid

in ten (1Siec=2) 2nnual instalments. plus. interest at the rate of 7% oer annum, until paid.
paid. _

Buyer resecves the right to pay more or to anticipate and discharge the balance in part

ox.in full 2t any timea
Propersy to consist of all the Nolaa Gault land in Sections 29 and/or 30. And

all the 5. F. Capusso properxty.in. Sections 29, 30, 3l and 32, with the exception of the

NW 174 sectioa of Scction 31 and the 12 or 13 acres already sold in the NE 1/4 of Section 31,

There_shall be an additional 10.acres withield for homesites of said sellers. _But.in.no

event shall shere be less than 360 acres that buyer is purchasing. In the event, alter

ARTERY DA s heen made. that there is less than 360 acres in the parcel thenbuyer isto be

credited with that amount at $4, 500. 00 per acre. Inthe event that there is more than

360 acres after_survay, that amenntis to be includedin the total price.
_Above deposit given with this offer to be included in the down-payment of

SAID PUROHAST PINCT INCLUOLS THE POLLOWING PERSOAAL PROPIATY: RO personal property -

Any amoust of property may be releass ed upon payment to sellexs of $5.000.00 per ACrE,
provided, zowever, the buyer shall receive credit toward such payment of any amount

_previsusly said, includiag the down-payment, :

AND IT 13 HEWELY AGRTED: (1u) Usdenipaed real cotate brolicr shvall bm.“.__..!.o.....-..__._lsyl 1o oblein octeptsaco of sofler. . 5
(2ad) Thet sSnu'3 purchaser 12i) 19 pay ™o balenco of tho purchase prite. o fail 19 exmplats the purchasa, o horein provided, tho omsvats pald hereon

. muy, ot the epiian sf eiles, bo relatned a8 tho eonsdongtise for tho osecsliny of Ihs egraemend by seller.

(3-2) Tineis 1o bo lreo of Lioas 8ad entumbroncos, o'her thaa {1) corrent tases, not yot doe or pa adle, (2) recorded trecl rerteigtions, (3) se? Dash Kags ond
willrp srrowents st for1h o recerded mops o in remerded traet restrictieas, (£) 2avag reguletions, (3) eay athers ite=s set forth Rherein. The! Vae avidesco of Vit
oo™ bo e Paliay of Tirte irsereate isverd by TRANSIMERICA TITLE INSUIANCE COMPANY, to Bo furaithed ond poid f3¢ by seller. That ia 1P e ovent Ny improve-
meats 8° s2°¢ sroawty 222! De desteryed 37 matesisily danagod berween the ¢3¢ beree! o detivery of finot deed or caatroct, or should e title 12 s2id property
prove delontivo @0 .~~witastebie, ord shou'd selior Do waoblo o perfae? the seme withia nicsty days {rom date horeo!, cll omesats peid horeon shall Do rotwaed
10 Porehtser vouY Goasnd. ualoss Burikoie oleets 10 oecupt 1ho Kitle in s0'd condition,

{41N) Ther esz3w it 10 elos0 0a, or bofere, _Apzil 30, 1973

paid by seller provided ooy deloquend

3 (S1h) Any es'srieg siressmonty and/er Imgraversent bonds €20 te be..
shell be paid By 39" o,

(61h) The® ¢ ovee=ce of this @greement *s lime oad o wndorssigned sool antete brober may, without aetice, oatond the me for 99 efdianc! porled of
ity teys shovid 15°8 30t o0 doen the estosr'en @eds1oble, oncopt the Nmo far tho sccuptasm horsol by seller e2d ot of possovsicn, Thot tho praperty §s soid
svbjoe? 10 720 swervent ¢f soler.

(7=} Possessss of peomises 1o bo given to purthoror en.._..._ﬁlQ.’.e.Q.‘ ERGIOW.,
(@re) The? oo veses fo tho Fisanl yoor eading Juno 30th oad ™o rents, insuraace, if pelides ore sstislectery to pesdharer, sad ofhor ovpanses ol sord propurty
shefl be provarod ss ol Cl0s@_Of_£SCTOW.

19'h) Ko ropreseniets ® o or Kos of oay bind or choratler hove besn made by oay porty hovato ¢ thelr ragrosontotives which mre ool
Boreln osprovsad.

e i+ 10 b wonted I purehove, o foioen——JOSE BH. CQNE ORTE:

13vpw Masirel Srutes ond Tenoney) Ploose Priat

sroKEN

0y.

: . . James E. Smith )
$ 09°0¢ 10 pusth9se the 0bowo deuribed proporty 0a tho lovms ond condiions Barein shated, and etknewiede rocrpl ol @ upy%

A [

Lotk /
e S e . (). “‘7//.& éﬁ:’j

ol ’u“’ o SSH eorsnnnen o
1 oprec 1y 1oM 1vg 02900 destribwd pooperty 00 the terme oad conditians hevoin tpted sad Bre0 1o poy 1be ebIve nomed broder, 04 somnliion, e rwm of

$57 of total purchase PLICC. . . .. .. .c. 0t onebol the depess in teve some h fovicised by portborm, providad ibe some tholl not
eocesd 1Mo Lol Dre3,et of 190 om airon. The yadersigaed acbromted o seseipt 0! @ supy beool.

Aggoptrace Sr'e " i iThe -wewi- cieve amracesressans 5 ".?..3... ‘ | ;:1'18
. EX_ No, ’ saure :

- ] L]




| COMMERCIAL

Lt

'J.'.L'L'J_J Hiixe,

e— —— 7 o® o PO =

P.0. BOX 569

2 came
* RINO, nivala

JOEN P. CAPURRD, EVILYN H. CAPURRO and NOLAN . Date: _ June 7. 1973
GALLT : Escrow NO._ _ 25673-2 .
CAPUR?D/CAULT-COLFORTE
_ RO3ERTA M. GRIZNFR, Vice President S
and Escrow Supervisor
= e ——
i CHARGES ||  CRZOITS
ConsZeratisn o Soles Prize : 51 732, 07).00
AT dr 29T Co-siderazion for Wasar Rishis : 22,533.30
Cazosits ]
]
i : .
Encunbrance t3 Remdin h [}
New Zacumbreaca to Caluzto & Gault (Parcel 1) $ 454,82%.25
“{%ew Sneusbrazze o Cajurro & Capurco (Pazcels 2 3 3) kL 591,793.41 )i
Newr Incusbrance to Gaule (Paccel &) i  192,091.8) |-
Pearriisas Made as 0! Juae 6, 1373 i |
i i
i ¢
3 : |
;
Tones for Yorr 91773 — 2av2a1 1 < Caourzo & Gauit : 328.40 .
Taxas Sor Vaar 1072-1273 - Pareals 2 & 3 - Cazurro & Cascurr ; £1¥,32 5
Taxes Zor Y2asc 1372-31373 - Parcels 2 & 3 - Capur:o Ca:vurro . 217. 26 ¢
Tixes for Year 1572-1372 - 2arcel 2 - Capu:iro § Cajurre ; 8’.73 ;
Taxes Ssr YWear 1372-1373 - 2arcel 4 - Ganl: ! 67:.93 |i i
I8 v
Cazuvro & Cipuzsd - c3sh down payzent for water ' 5,004.¢88 |
f . i
Gaule - eash down zav=a2st ZoT watao L 1,554. 40 i i
. I : 1
Ciourro & Ci3urco ssoz22ds §153,980.25 less tax total of I T '
$.29 - i 193,243.9% . 1
| i i
Gazls sw=oca2dg $53,315.52 less fax total of $571.93 i, $2,344.69 ¢ '
! !
Cazuzre & GCaulec sosz2ads $132,221.93 less tax sotzl of $328.49 ¢} 151,893.58 . {
s : N
! i
Braters Caam. 1o a9z 2ealty, Imc. and Eumphrey Rez2l Estate .! 36,10%.25 |
Overage on Survery 39 S. Z. & A. A 500.00
Cerveyanszing 73
Ta2x Sersice |
Title Premium- std. ($1,722,925.00) 1/2 each A 2,052.50 It
Title Premium - &LTA t l -
?la Ins;-cl-n' 1 ! |
ts row Fee =~ 1/2 cach ] 539.50 i i
.iders Contral Feeo ll =
_l-stalln-nt Collection Set-ua ~w2 = I.C. £3229 - 1/2 ecc} i 7.50
—chonvoym-cc Fuo i l
NMRPTY. -~ 1/2 cazh _ ¥ 947.65 |.
Pezordiny Fers —_— u :
I i
g — i |
€s'anze Dus Per Stae—ert 2730204 W ; i %‘
T eyarat Per Cl-;b_; “yeman { ) N
o Co ISl—.—ﬂr'h 00 31_7(.&.65?-.00




T-.s latter will supercecs2 all orevious jnstzootior
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LETTER OF INSTRUCTION

Date: Junz2 5, 1973.

N -s. Robert Greiner

‘-3t Commercial Title, Inc.
5. Virginia

eno, Nevada.

I

. b
&2y

b 7

Dear Roberta,

Caourro - Conforte

This letter will confirm the understa=ding among the
parties as relates to the payment of commissions concerning the

above .ent:'.tlad escrow.

It is my understanding that the commission 'in question
will be 55 of $1,722, 025, or $86,101.25. Of this amount, you
are to pay through escrow on closing to Waskoe Realty, Inc.,
2s the listing broker, the sum of $40,000; tae sum of $30, 000,
less the cost of the boundary survey, legal description and various
fees, to S.E. & A. Consulting Engineers/Placaers, in 2 sum.
not to exceed 510, 000, is to be paid to Humphrey Rezl Estate;
th- balance of the comrmission in the sum of $16,101. 75 is to be
re~itted to the purchaser, Mr. Joseph Conforte, in the form of

T te
2 cnrev.N,

I am executing this letter on behalf ol i
2=2 Stanley H. Brown is executing on behali of

o the payrnent of commissions kerein.

Sincerely,

WAYRZ N. CAPR20y
Att;d%ley for. Sellers v

Attorney fof Purchaser

EX. No.3

seliers,
a:rchaser.

s z: velates

<1

o

0




1209 SOUTH.VIRGINIA STAZEZ
RENO, NEVADA €3502

=
:
"i'...—

- (-r...nr
ﬂq"r A | ' < -, r J
-b— l Jl~.

oo T -.:, zscnaw Accoun'r ST S
.::,;;: 0‘5- 2. & A- T ’ . .
Chd o ~ . R
. o " : o el g CO’-‘Y NOT N.uOTIABLE =
St e = = = g '
g P ITRTI S TLT Navs COVTO2TS EsCROw N228673-2
S = - :
; Susvey Tee $10,532.00
i
o~ - - N - ﬁ :
. : . SR 0147 <
Last PREITnT r3m BavegsT + - Ist Commercial Title, Inc. - -
meTrIxs €0 Savs,

REZvWI, nEVADA 83302




L3

—— &

?

ist Commercial

Tifte:\_—ﬁ'lc.lD

014754

| e T A M 613
Wi b2 73
TAK =2 S
: ruer £34 A0 00 ST
FIRST HATIOHAL BANK GF HEVAGA $40,000.00
. —- !SCRO" ACCOUNT
=9 ~-g '-,' /' ~:r 4~
sasgs ° WASHQE REALTY R / ;
e __.:.:_i- '.-. _.,‘-"’-1’ -_. Lle
#OLL7SL 135252=00bb3  H70wiE8 9 #000L000000+¢
| V}/ﬂ
.z £l ‘. ’.'1. "ll\t"
2z
YRS S ER L
JW1173 (0SS 0322
EX. No.5
) {f-'/:'abz




=T T - D14TSE

st Commercial Title, Inc.b NGRS
’ 1409 SOUTH VIRGINIA STREET ) S ; Teoe
3 ’ 94a=11
: RENO, NEVADA 83502 RS ) 3
sty S

S'w..t.fé‘l.. = - .E B oo NPT
e et o R 3 ; % € o
= JRRRITIRA SN 3&‘5“1320 -om oo ‘(.uwo '

l'_,p !

=
&
I e S et ',4- . . - -
-l A S < A N o
= N e cnn ‘ ""_’, -_gscPow AcCOUNT T T ¢ -
T e ° s - '--r.
) s o.

. - . PR N ) o R . =il L . . :
' . . N b er ok h : '-' Loty - 'q RS
. AT ICRR R P X S

: 0 e A CO’Y NOT N‘GOT'ABLE
. . % .-‘ -“ ;-. i . - ) .. ..t’.s*; 2. .
\' . PROUI - ) ° : ;: < B2 j

wiwg

m—— =i

DLELDE SRESENT FOR PAYMENT
. ’ ) REWO, nEvaSa 83332

wﬁ:— X e
CAPLFRD sang CRETOTD =

Cocmission $30,000.00, less portioa of su=vey $10,000.00
m 520,000..00

S e

s ==

1st Cornmercial Title, Inc. -

oo’

@eTelre §30A4YS,

® EX. No.b -
2153




v -
= =t — - - -
3 s e .
s* Co cial Tit] ’c - : D14T3
i -—\-ta C 1 e, lq i .
1233 33U T= Vi 2 3INIA STREET . 94-11
RENO, NEIVADA 89502 . R —— T212
- & 6 73 s
TSR S T AL Tl TS
i L FaRSTiN LP' .'.'a y__ -r':' o5 4";‘ > »‘;.‘--_r- — L e $16,101.25
i i SEGAIE f1 e et et e I aha UM R 7 Aalberll .rooc
i - = -
: T - ESCROW ACSIUNT
I A . 7
e m : . N
| 2o vét JOSZFE COXFORTT - '
czoza
oF ;
: COPY NOT N2GOTIASLE
\
) . —
=
i CLoUERo, GAULT .eaz COYTORTE gscacs ~224I73- 2
e ' '

el ace =

pesidue cf coz=ission per ifmstzmciless

$16,101.25

#—

PLEASE PRESENT FON PAYMENT
WwiITHiee 60 OAYS,

1st Comrercizl Title, Inc.

men3, nCvaca 89502

X. No.- 7 - o
2154

e e




L 4

TR P oa r g MeA T AR TN ASTRITA 8 8 ST CR R St ST ¢ 4 ST 5 5 0 0 58 8 0,7 R UTTTT AR 6 TN 0 8 STy ST ST P

' WILLIAM T. ITUMPIIREYS - - .° 4 ~ 1T 2000

(3 P8 ]

435 APPLE STRERT  ©: < = = ¥ - : g
RUNO, NEVADA 89502 2 S - - o g : 24.9
. . [l - - - - - . .:. . -
& . .

. L B .f_é_’- 7_._____11)72_' A

s S e gessip T <SP

-l s ; = pus 2
Y P L W R
.o'.’ | . _..‘. . "o -.:: . ) _':'...- .

Prno Aty OFNCE

- Gecurit s

HAMML‘M-’MV’M : AL 4. 4;.‘.;.‘,'2'_" ;

oo . - Lo
3 '_ .: -:. :bj.fi‘osw-oﬁ;_-.

ageiids, (38 SLUSE Sl RIS AL O TN, WO,

+0d0 1800000,

{'ﬂ'f'rh.m-v-rmnn.w-w-:uem VY . "Wﬂﬂ-m i .-

- [ - - ® *a o H - ;:‘ ::;'-\hf.:‘. ‘V‘.‘-:‘ - @ .. \‘.“-‘ . = ‘ - 0 . -“’o .Y ‘f. - - - . . K .' - r ‘
. e . R ' AT
\j -~ . 0-'"‘}.\.‘. 5 ". ¢ :q:.?“. X
D . T
3 .. e n
3 S n ' : T
\) Q’ ' \(l\ s - Lag IS '-11 . .'.o ot
A .. ' * -
J 3 5 3 R f
< ~ G e & ;
. O wihd e . ’
L KN 3 = v
) 5 ~N : - O \ — (4G e waa . . \ .
~ c\\(. ZOR L | ToINine 2 e e -
) m¥05< 3 v-!‘.‘-‘-é.'g'.‘t . = -
c " m » ok X R R A
' ok <% B o B A & coe veo S
: ’ .'L.' 1 Q ~ E € ~- -
. .. e, E = m a - m .. .
3 = (=] 1 = ) [
o == '.‘t ? w .
‘T\ u-". | "4.# ." *
e 0 " 3 5 I’ . .
A . .- .. L3 . H . ..
. oFe F }-5'.!‘:'.51 : Y 2 " E 1
L .L"-".""\' . e te . e
e s :q ..‘:.l’:_ "’:’b.. w2l
s :3:‘- L% - N ". Tty
e 5 ! S I R e
F
i
’
oA I
fo ADD
EX. No. 8




v -~,w‘ =

, : o
' 2---32.::0“':8...;6:.2'_3

-.....—sda

-
2iav2 1903
3¥ 2,1

lorminame

w---.—..-.;,. -.--o—-«—ﬁ——b“c- —

{onforte: 3&1&?} ke;._

PR

nef:}( copy ShOWS - -
18 G@ﬁ tﬁ Bi‘—a.n;ﬂ}

iyt Xdd --')n -

< -rB massnw.» : ; s la
T Si3tp Sao, Staz D-aku.hc‘! D-Sparks, refused to cocmen
tc«a; LUl 3 pLOICSIAUC SIpY Of ET) ;'lmchecs madzous:
-to bisay one of We realtors who participated in the sa's
tc.am m.mbmm&opmmrwnfom-_ _,.'
»- Dragsiich wast asked by the Ranc Eveaing Gazet's ik
volved: m\th&- ‘.-..—a.:sacnnndn:
pe.aﬂ:ntgm_ecu&- =%
- TharbbocEnc
cogwaor: a:ou:.erc:.ecx-
TATEEE O 3 SRPITTR, -Somn s ipete ‘M'v-'\.-'q' o =
3/ T'_mua'gnomuuemyv-:safa 1z Commers yE RIS
lnesrescyaaccount check iz th& amountof 320,000 o
c-_'u-'cx’ Eucphrey Raal :.suta.-ﬂl'hireoprsnows-m
vut3iad- 0 a 59.000-COmission irt-tbe Capuro-«.o'"rr
la=3 2xc=a3=ge. ~less pocticnof survey 510, oM. T J
Bau.os hillianm Eunshrevs, wpo-said on Mares '.'3 k
paritpass =Gt sa:e, oCay refused to com"e:. g‘-oa:!

it

—’(

..,\

-!
_!

- “- ‘-
T - * e

%

) t= = crorosiaiictoty of the escro® chees:

Braa: Drzu.u:.*:. also refused-tocomract abeus “-?

v..:-z.:s.:.-~coo- of 2 check stowmias in the actount ¢

Wiliam -5 '-?nreys for 518,000 to Drakulich: D-a.v‘"chl

-gaid adav he a3 Huopkreys were busicess associaies. -

B -‘:‘Bﬁmosmnccopwshst the escrow check to .-.:.-".*_-exi

‘PaayEstaiaas madeoutozrJune 5,1973and e Humpzsersy

.checeic Dalulichas madeouto-x.hne? 1973. e
_Dainuiic= paid the internal PevenueService S13,170.55 15y

. ‘Ju..z‘:- -."‘:lepayme't.was;orback.nuandm'ﬂ-&_ ;}

Rees counsiman Clyde Biglieri. owder of Wasica
P.cz.., TG Us MATCa S LT a.sa partcipatedis ’-e a*a
tracsaciiss. < "._x_—' el s o .,;;-;._-...._. . ,_:_.

Biziarisaid bis fir— received $43,0003s 2 com-:.ss:c:'_:
the saler @tile Humpseys at that time would 292 s_*sei
h.sc:..c-ssxon Today Humporeys reizsed any co-:::e-.:
:Tke R.a_a-Sp.a..‘s-Ca.. M-A..-l._.on.ﬁ.vo.ed .c..s we

-
;-’.-l ---a’— =

mcntooagermg} 25 N

EX.

- Conforte land bf'g' Ker -
check {',{)B}’ shows - .
318 060 to Draknlich ©

: - (Contirued from °age L) o

' topm:iz.se"wm of 350 acres of the land pu.-cr.asedlaw

-Juae by Ca..forw- for event
c CouTse. £ _ - T L%, uaj de?‘?f?" as:a, goliy

“r;‘p -p’n"'{l‘ .‘""G' \":'
Y

-
-

:;," S o
o 4590 a telech echone jatervies this morning. Dr*‘m!icb ref_uﬁ

‘I e - .
2l 22010 02 €218 Of Lo8Clecss a5 190¢ 23 3 am[g,
wasnz::::g zissa:e=eals owacpa ’V“B'W"\te’

-

’_"U voa d:n t s{o tv'.:"' I'm

!B e (2.2'.“‘3(!2 CCB\ 9'52»!0!'.

o"xce. - . c

iBut ke o fiered 1o meel with the repo..er in his Sparks%

Drakulica rejused to allow -twol
newspa;e.-'.:e.. ‘R0 h2 had invis

ed o0 in .e-'viev- ’:.m tt-ere 2

to:.akea:;»':-:'.es. N . A
. Kz sa: a: Bis desxwith a ‘ape record2r and taped the'l
interview. ]

,Drak..}.::. szld be »-ou!d prov\d> 2 wriitea s.a~ene-;‘ *toi

- the rewspapers under the cenditicn there eculd be no
edn"-g a::.",.u....t..;.bepr.".-:cw'oauﬁ. . -

[“Theresorers checked with ecitors in Reao by phone and’ 1
were id 1 explaia o bim thal the newsaapers could not
asswre pubiicatisn of 3 compiete statemen? without having’
seeails ¢ [comien: 2a: ey musi reserve taerighi 10 edit for .
lidel azd 5¢ ::.z. . Taey did onar o .a.{e ths esseace ofhis.

s2lement .
Dra.m..cl: izer reiused to give lhe wri'..ea statem-ut bul
he said
. -E‘Befa..se of rast experience with newspapers. he wamed
’ uigweawn'..zn statesent S ag

““Sicee there are cther people mvolve-d and ll seems tobe

very, very political, and the writlen statement-is nol ac~
cepladle, Lem be preferred to make no comment, he said.-

‘Editors 2id ol say the wriliea stalemeal was nol ac-
cepublenmmyn.d pot been scown it b] Drakuﬁcb and
Lhus could maite 00 editorial judgment. . e

E B T S O R s T




S.B. 152

SENATE BILL NO. 152—COMMITTEE ON FEDERAL, STATE
AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

FEBRUARY 1, 1673
S
Refzrr2d to Committee on Federal, State and Local Governments
SU.\IMAR.'x'—R:d::es minimum population requirements of counties for spesial

provis.ons conserting county fair and recrsation boards. Fiscal Note: No.
(BDR 20-776)

Exrioxamion-—=NMatter in ftalics is sen; roater in brockets{ )b
materlal to be oritted,

AN ACT in7 12 county fair and recreation boards; reducing the minimurg
ropu .=irement of counties to which certain provisions apply; and
provid.n g ¢iner matters properly relating thereto.

The Peop'z of :i:2 State of Nevada, reprosen:2d in Senate and Assembly,
do cnact as fo!lorv's:

1 Sec1:oN 1. NRS 244.645 is hercby amznded to read as follows:
2 244.6+% 1. VWhenever the board of county commissioners of any
2 county or th: bo.rd of supervisors of Carson City desires the powers
i granted in NRS 225,640 to 244.780Q. inclusive, to be excrcised. it shall,
5 by resoluiizn, detzrmine that the intercst of the county and th: public
o interest, nzsessiiy or dosirability requirs the exercise of such powers and
7 the creztion of = county fair and rccrextion board therefor, pursuzut to
3 the provisions ¢f NRS 244.640 to 2+4.780, inclusive. After approval
U of the resol2tion, the county or city clerk shall:
1" (a) Causz 2 copy of the resolution to b: published gromptly once in
!i) a |:l:wspa;er pubiished in and of general circulation in the county or city;
-
i (b) In the cusc of a county, cause a certified copy of the resol:tion to
1 be muiled by rezistared or certified m2il to the mayor or other chizf exec-
“outive officer of ¢i.ch incorporated city wichin the county.
o 2. In counties having a population ¢f £200.000] 100,000 or more,
©+ e county fair znd cecreation board shzil bz sclected as provided in NRS
> 2447802, [In ccunties having a popul:.tion of 100,000 or more and less
<+ than 200,677, t-¢ most populous incorporatad city in the county shall be
= ' represented on (it county fair and recreition board by two members, and
o1 the mext mast papulous incorporated city by oae member. % In counties

)

having a papuliiion of 11,000 or m~re and lass than 100.009, and in
=" which therz is on2 or more incorporated city, cach inzorporated city,
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except an incorporated city which is the county seat, shall be represented
by one mainber and avy incorporated city which is the county scat shu!l
bz represented by four mambars. Within 30 days after the day of publica-
tian of the resolution or the diy on which the last of the copiss of the
ssolution wus muailed, whichever day is later, the mayer or other chict
cxecutive officer shall, with the approval of the legisiative body of the
city, appoini a membar or rmembars of the city council or board of trus-
tess to serve on the board for the remainder of his ur their terms of
ofice. The clerk or sccretary of the city shall promptly certify the
appoiniment by registered or certified mail to the county clerk. In coun-
ti=s having a population of less thun 11,000, any incorporated city which
is the county scat shuil b2 r2 resented by one membsr, who shall be
appointed and certified as provided ia this scction, and the board of
county commissionzrs shall appoint three representatives as follows:

(a) One member (o represent the motcl oparators in the county.

(b) Onec member to represent the hotcl operators in the county.

(c) One member to represent the other commercial intercsts in the

county.
5. [In countics having a population of 100,000 or more and less than
200,000, two members of the board of county commissioncrs shall be
appointed by the board of county comimissioners to scrve on the board
:5¢ the remainder of their terms of office.d In countics having a populz-
tion of less than 100,000, ong membar of the board of county commis-
sionzrs shall be appointed by the county commissioners to serve on the
board for the remainder of his term of office.

4. Population shall bz determinad by the last preceding national
census of the Bureau of the Census of the United States Department of
Coinmarce.

s. In Carson City the board of supsrvisors shall appoint five rcpre-
saniziives to the fair and reereation board established as provided in
subsection 1 as follows:

_(2) Two membars to represent the hotel and motel operators in the
city.
_(b) One membsar to represcni the other cominercial interests in the
city.

(c) Onz member who is 2 member of the board of supervisors.

(d) Onc member to represent the city at large.
6. The terms of all members appointed purstant to this section, whe
are not electcd ofticizls, shall terminate on January 1, 1972. Thereafter,
<uch mambers shall be appointed for 2-year terms. Any such memb2r
may succeed himaelf.

7. The terms of all elected oflicials shall be coterminous with theis
terms of oflice. Any such niember may succeed himself.

Sec.2. NRS 244.7801 is hercby amended to read @s follows:

244.7801 The provisions of NRS 244.7801 to 244.7806, inclusive,
apply to any county hay ing a population of £200,0003 100,000 or morc.
5 determined by thie last preceding national census of the Burcau of the
Census of the United Stuies Department of Commerce.
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19 FIRST COMMERCIAL TITLE. INC.
Peno. Nevade

October ., 1974

29441-2

Date:
€scrow No :

CONSIDERATION

Pacouisideolescrom . . ... ...l

Cash 110LGD) 8CI0OW!
Cezossiad nerewsth
Tobe Ceposiled . . . ..« ..o cono s

Encumbranceys) of record (1o remain)

.................

..........
............

Otner - ..

JOTAL CONSIDERATION . . . .. ..o cvevve e

INSTRUCTIONS

s
s 813,750.00

..........

¢ 165,956.50 i .

"
. 979,705.50

EnCLUMPALRCES €F RICDED SUNILT 10 MAR1MCIANY STATINERT. MAINTAN TOTAL CONMOIAATION BY ADJUSTING CASK TRROVEHN

$3C20® 08 Nie InCLuiAAAliL)

1 AM SELLING TO:

Ine preponty hwveinaher cascsibod on the terms herein sot

RENO-SPARKS CONVENTION AUTHORITY

forth, and will hand you Einstrumentonveying

the
$2i0 oroperty maich is Cescrided as follows, 10-wit: (If adduional space is needed. attach Exhibit.) 214,657 acres

located in the City of S
report dated August 15,

arks, sore
974, includ

{articularly described in preliminary title
ng 275 acre

Ditch and approp-iate sharas in ORR DITCH CO..
has been computed at $4%,500.00 per acre, plus $50.00 per acre

feet of water appurtenant, froa Orr
The purchase price of this property
foot for water rights.

} puthorize you to calivar 32id instrument to the above named Darty of reresenidlive LDON payment 10 you for oy
sccount of the cash censidaration and.'or naw encumbrancets) 8s speciiied in ths C E:sideulion Instructions
- -

2 Standard Form Policy of .

Persinbafcre Set out 333 upon CogGLion, Al (G4 peocure

Title Insurance in tha amount of !M srd an ALTA Policy [if required Dy lender) in tne amount

of s . on the above Cascribed real prapany which will show 1321 tha litie of s3id property

is vestsd n: The County of Washoe, State of Nevada, acting through its
Reno-Sparks Convention Authority

SUBJECT ONLY 10:
{3) Tases for :=e Fiscal Year 19764-75

. INCLUDING ANY SSCUI!D' PeRSONAL PROFERTY TAXES,

and any and all tazes and assessments lavied cr assessed subsequant 10 date pl thase instruclions, except 83

otherwise specihically required horesn.

{2) Lien. lavied by the City of Reno-Sparks for sew
current 3t cisse of escrow.

or use fee. Sellers heredy agree said fee will be

(3) Liea, (if any) for sgecial assessments. 1o be assumed Dy buver D paid in full Dy seller m

14) COVENANTS, CCriOITIONS, RESTRICTICNS. RESERVATIONS, RIGHTS, RIGHTS OF WAY AND EASEMENTS NON
OF RECORD w1 any) sfizcling the via 308 6CIURANCY of $3id preoeny 33 Ins $ams now may sppaar of record,

e3cedt 23 ciherwise spacilically reguired Perden
(S) Prosissory Note and first
herewith, to be executad by buyer in
be established p-ior to the
$165,956.50,

favor

closa of escrow),
stacing that cthe entire principal balence
per anoua, will be dus aod payable on or before ons (15

1f vichin five (5) years from the date of purchase, buyesr,

Deed of Trust, to be recorded “concurrently

of sellers herein (beneficial interest to
in the principal amount of

plus accrued interest at 8%
year from close of escrow,

{ts successors

assigns, grantees or perdittees shall not have in good faith cocmenced const:uction

of an 18 hole public golf course

assigrass, shall have the right to meel or

subnitted by any third party at any such sale.

on said lands, and,
said land or a part thereof pursuant Lo NRS 244 .231, sellers,

if buyer comnences a sales of
their helrs or
better the terms of any bid on said land

£x. No. !l

HIECUTION

OF atlL DOCUMENTS in CONNICTION wiln A ASSUMPTION OF AND-OR NIW LOAN WINIIN

ALIERRED TO Smatl 0f DEEVED AS SULL APPAOVAL OF IME TIAMS TRIALOF I

1 38r0w Insingtians continusd on nyst poge)






